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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 28™" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders
of BOB Financial Solutions Limited will be held on Wednesday, 28t September
2022 at 11.00 AM at Ground Floor, Baroda Corporate Centre, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051, to transact the following business.

ORDINARY B
. To receive, adopt and consider the Annual Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 31st March 2022 and Report of the Board of Directors,
Auditors and Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
thereon.

. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Purshotam (DIN 08504005), who is
retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the
following resolution as ORDINARY RESOLUTION:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section142 r/w 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to fix the
remuneration of such Auditors of the Company, as may be appointed/re- appointed by

the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) for the financial year 2022-
2023.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Board of Directors and
the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with schedule
1V to the companies Act, 2013, Shri Sanjay Kao (DIN 09447175), who was appointed
by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from
17 January, 2022 and who holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and
is hereby appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company to
hold the office for a period of 3 Years i.e. up to (Date) 2025, not be liable to retire by
rotation.”
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Place: Mumbai

Date: 7 5 JUL 2022

Registered Office :

2nd Floor 'Baroda House'

Behind Dewan Shopping Centre
S.V. Road Jogeshwari (W)
Mumbai - 400 102

% BOB Financial

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
For BOB Financial Solutions Limited

[Safjiv al
Chairperson
(DIN: 08388448)
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NOTES

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE MEETING IS ALSO
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

A Proxy form, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company not less than forty eight hours before the commencement of the
aforesaid meeting.

Members are requested to intimate to the Company, changes, if any, in their
registered addresses, nomination, power of attorney etc. at an early date, in case
of shares held in physical form.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days, between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the Meeting.
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TO THE MEMBERS
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 28" Annual Report of the Company

along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31 March,
2022.

T T TS - AT TTTTN R AT

The Company is a Systemically Important Non Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company (‘NBFC’) as defined under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
('RBI’) Act, 1934. Its core business is Credit Card issuance. It also provides support to
Bank of Baroda by carrying out its Merchant Acquiring Operations.

During FY 21-22, the Company continued it resilient performance amidst the
challenges posed by the pandemic. The Company focused on increasing its credit
cards customer base by offering digital solutions. The Company continued its
business operations from 100+ locations.

The Company successfully implemented FirstVision Card Management System
(CMS) and integrated digital DIY (Do It Yourself) origination journey with Bank of
Baroda’s TABIT journey were the most significant technology achievements during
FY 21-22

Product launches and innovations were one of the key highlights of FY 21-22, right
from the issuance of RuPay credit cards to the global first launch of ConQR - the two-
in-one product combining credit card and QR acceptance that was done in
partnership with Mastercard (as it owns the patent).

The Company continued to implement the two-pronged growth strategy (of BoB
customers on one side and key partnerships on the other) by entering into co-brand
partnerships with both large and trusted organizations as well as new age Fintechs.
These included partnerships with Fintechs like FPL Technologies (for OneCard) and
CreditAl (for Unnati - the credit card for farmers), thereby positioning BOB Financial
as an issuer that is receptive to new age partners.

The Company also launched Co-branded credit cards with IRCTC and the Indian
Navy. The Indian Navy co-brand helped the Company to expand its portfolio of co-
branded credit cards with the Defence Forces, as Memoranda of Understanding were
signed with the Indian Army, Assam Rifles and Indian Coast Guard for launch of co-
branded credit cards.

The Company also completed SI Hub integration in order to comply with RBI's
guidelines for e-Mandates. During the year, the BCP site of the Company was made
operational in Gurugram.

The commercial papers issued by the Company received rating of CRISIL Al+ from
CRISIL and IND Al+ from India Ratings.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FE.Y.2021-22:

Following was the Financial Performance of the Company for the year ended 31st
March 2022:

(Amountin Rs. Cr.)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Total Revenue 499.65 366.27
Total Expenses (including exceptional and 505.61 388.80
prior period items)
Profit / (loss) before Tax (5.96) (22.53)
Tax expenses (4.47) (12.93)
Profit / (loss) after Tax (10.43) (9.6)
CRAR 17.86% 19.61%
EPS (Rs.) (0.41) (0.55)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE [FY 2021-22]:

o Total revenue for the F.Y. 2021-22 increased by 36.42% to around Rs.500 Cr as
against Rs.366 Cr in the preceding F.Y. 2020-21 primarily driven by Increase in
Credit Card Business on account of increase in Interest income and Fee income
partially offset by increase in direct expenses.

Total expenses at Rs.505.61 Cr increased by 30% as compared to Rs. 388.80 Cr in
the preceding F.Y. 2020-21. mainly due to increase in operating expenses and
finance cost

Capital Adequacy and Liquidity

As per the capital adequacy norms issued by the RBI, Company’s capital to risk ratio
consisting of tier I and tier II capital should not be less than 15% of its aggregate risk
weighted assets on balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items.
As of March 31, 2022, Company’s CRAR was 17.86% compared to 19.61 % as of March
31, 2021.

The Tier I capital in respect of an NBFC-ND-SI, at any point of time, is required to be
not less than 10%. Company’s Tier I capital was 13.03% as of March 31, 2022
compared to 12.8% as of March 31, 2021.

During F.Y. 2021-22, the Company has increased its paid-up share capital from Rs.175
crores to Rs.275 crores by issuance of further equity shares of Rs.100 crores. There was

no change in the Company’s authorized capital during the year.
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SERVIES
IESERVES

Due to loss mcw'red during the year, the Company has not transferred any sum to
Statutory Reserve in compliance with the Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 for F.Y. 2021-22.

DIVIDEND:
Wlth a view to conserve internal resources and meet the growth & transformation
initiatives, the Board does not propose to recommend any dividend during the year

under review.

'_., \L

The Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public during
the F.Y.2021-22and has no plans in near future. Prior approval of Reserve Bank of
India will be obtained for acceptance of deposits, if any, in future.

OANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
ECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
Dunng F.Y.2021-22, the Company has not gwen any loans or guarantees to any other
body corporate.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during F.Y. 2021-

AL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY:
No adverse material changes have occurred or commitments made after 315t March,
2022 which may affect the financial position of the Company or require disclosure.

S OF APPLICATION UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
E, 2016
No application was made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of
2016) during the year.

MAJOR INITIATIVES TAKEN :
Key Business Highlights

FY 21-22 was a watershed year for the Company. The aspiration to grow into a
leading Indian credit card issuer was evident in the many firsts, achievements and
investments that underlined the FY, in spite of the challenges brought about by the
pandemic that continued in varying degrees.

Product launches and innovations were one of the key highlights of FY 21-22, right
from the issuance of RuPay credit cards to the global first launch of ConQR - the two-
in-one product combining credit card and QR acceptance that was done in
partnership with Mastercard (as it owns the patent).
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The Company continued to implement its two-pronged growth strategy (of BoB
customers on one side and key partnerships on the other) by entering into co-brand
partnerships with both large and trusted organizations as well as new age Fintechs.
These included partnerships with Fintechs like FPL Technologies (for OneCard) and

CreditAlI (for Unnati - the credit card for farmers), thereby positioning BOB Financial
as an issuer that is receptive to new age pariners.

Co-branded credit cards were also launched with IRCTC and the Indian Navy. The
Indian Navy co-brand helped BOB Financial to expand the portfolio of co-branded
credit cards with the Defence Forces, as Memoranda of Understanding were signed
with the Indian Army, Assam Rifles and Indian Coast Guard for launch of co-
branded credit cards.

» The Company issued more than 500,000 new credit cards in FY 21-22, doubling
the new acquisition done in FY 20-21. It also joined the elite club of issuers with a
base of 1 Million or more credit cards, thus positioning it as a force to reckon
with, in the Indian credit cards industry. In March 2022 itself, more than 130,000
new credit cards were issued, making BOB Financial one of the Top 5 issuers
(estimated) for the month.

» Retail spends more than doubled compared to FY 20-21, clocking approximately
Rs. 7,000 cr. This growth was made possible by relevant customer offers across
merchant categories, in partnership with leading offline and online merchants. At
any given time, more than 100 customer offers were live across regular and EMI
spends. The growth in retail spends was also a result of multiple initiatives
towards improving customer experience, in addition to launch of relevant
products and offers. Initiatives like self-service through website, IVR and SMS or
programs like Add-On cards for family, referral programs, topical campaigns on
social media etc. all helped in increasing customer engagement, leading to more
than doubling the retail spends.

» The focus on enhancing technology infrastructure continued in FY 21-22. The
implementation of FirstVision - the leading Card Management System and the
launch of 100% digital Credit Card journey on TABIT - Bank of Baroda’s digital
origination platform were the flagship achievements. Several other initiatives
across the customer lifecycle, from origination to usage to retention, were
undertaken in line with the strategic intent of being a top ranking, customer-
centric credit card issuer.

The Company also continued to invest both in human resources as well as points of
presence, to effectively align with the 18 Zones and 148 Regions of Bank of Baroda.
This focus on leveraging the Bank’s distribution strength while building its own is in
line with the Company’s growth aspirations.



BOB Financial

ANNUAL REPORT
Technology

The Company made significant progress in its technology initiatives to strengthen its
technology and data security capabilitites and emerge as a leading digital player
among the various credit card issuers. Some of the key enablers accomplished during
the year are enumerated below:

e Migration to Vision Plus to scale the Company’s business volumes manifold by
designing various customer value propositions and introduce new revenue
streams and provide multiple self-service options to customers;

Introduction of Fusion (API Layer) to help introduce new channels of customer

onboarding, loyalty and seamless multiple integrations;

Data Lake integrated with BI to help identify right customer and their segment

for upsale and deliver enhanced business intelligence by streamlining the flow of

information;

Launched new products with rich and exclusive features to help tap affluent

segments; _
Launched digital onboarding channels - Customer Do-It-Yourself and RM
Assisted (TABIT) for better lead management, workflow management,
automated decision making and exception management
Setup new embossing partners on Vision Plus and bureau data scrubbing
Completed security tool implementation - Managed Detection and Response
(MDR), Endpoint Detection and Response (EDR), email security and
introduction of Data Loss Prevention Tool.

& hisK vlianagement

The Company has built an advanced risk management infrastructure that is robust
and fortified by our data analytics and digital capabilities. The Company evaluates
multiple attributes for every credit decision including application variables, credit
bureau and demographic variables as well as underlying verifications. The Company
also possesses a large database of (existing and historical) demographic and socio-
economic cardholder data, derived from numerous transactions. The database
facilitates in-depth analysis of card user propensities and future performance
modelling. This, along with data from credit bureau and other sources, is analysed to
generate underwriting scorecards, proactively mitigating risks and reducing losses
and delinquencies.

The Company has also developed models to accurately estimate risk for new-to-credit
and new-to-card customers who do have a credit history and account for a large
section of the population. They are expected to be key growth drivers for India’s
credit card market. Using modelling we have segmented Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
models, which are Ind-AS compliant and take into consideration economic indicators
in portfolio stress-testing models basis our learnings from the COVID induced stress.
We undertake an in-depth approach to credit analytics in our periodic credit
monitoring processes. This involves analysing behavioural and several other related
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variables to manage cardholder accounts. The variables are reviewed periodically to
minimise any variance in the information underpinning those attributes.

The Company also has a strong collection mechanism, supported by technology
infrastructure. It has further added significant collections capabilities in the field of
skip tracing, credit bureau integration and legal litigation for account resolution. The
Company also leverages its technology to send billing statements by e-mail and also
send text messages of statement generation, amounts due and due date for better
reach. Our collections personnel initiate contact with cardholders if the payment due
date is missed. Collection scorecards tailored to cardholder behaviour are maintained
to estimate their propensity to pay. FY 21- 22 was a watershed year for BFSL in the
field of NPA recovery, with recoveries exceeding INR 51 cr. This metric has safely
assured that the toxic effect of the COVID induced stress on the asset quality is well
and truly behind us, and the foundation for a good quality portfolio can be built at
scale.

Service delivery excellence is core to relationship with the customers and continues to
be a focus area for the Company. With clear intend to emerge as a customer friendly
organization, revisiting and revising internal Policies and Processes to make them
more efficient, also adopting trending technology solutions to revolutionize our
Customer Experience standards.

Our Vision is to create bespoke customer experience across touchpoints through
smart adoption of technology while ensuring the human element of service is not
compromised.

With an aim to transform the customer journey through onboarding, Lifecyle
management right upto closure, the Company adopted Talisma as its Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) tool. We embraced the multipronged approach of:
e Customer Engagement through proper tracking and managing customer journey
in delivering superior experience
o Customer Experience upliftment through processes and innovation on doing
better every time
* Service Agent empowerment through better decisioning by way of providing real
time information at the click of a button
* Measurable service parameters to ensure accountability and focus on continuous
improvements on both qualitative and quantitative aspects

Initiatives Undertaken: -

e Restructuring of the grievance redressal mechanism and quick resolutions to
enhance level of customer satisfaction.

o The Company adopted new CRM solution for the Contact Center and Email
Interaction with customers for one-view, timely response and resolutions.

° Further strengthened Call Centre through extended setup at BCP location

6
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o Realtime payment postings through select payment channels (ie. Instapay /
BBPS) resulting in instant release of Open to Buy limits on card.
Enhancement in Self-Serve Opportunities for customers thru introduction of
Instant SMS feature / Intelligent IVR at Contact Centre / Web Portal
Tie-up arrangement across Merchants to offer Instant EMI to cardholders.
[ntroduction of E-Mandate, a paperless process for registering Direct Debit
Instructions from Bank of Baroda and Other Banks Accounts
Integration with Bank’s mobile app “BoB world” for BoB credit card payment

The Company is also in the process of extending Service Delivery Channels with
introduction of Mobile App / WhatsApp / Chatbot services to match the Industry
standards and offer best servicing solutions.

Marketing:

When it comes to marketing strategy, the Company followed a thumb rule of
EVOLUTION ie. always getting inspired by our environment, continuously honing
our capabilities, and shaping our present for the future in vision. To enhance our
growth potential in the FY 21-22, the Company focussed on adopting digital ways of
promoting business. The Company wanted to enjoy brand salience and hence
marketing strategy for the FY 2021-22 was again focussed on pushing brand
awareness, enhanced engagement, and incremental conversion.
e The Company opened the year with the vision to launch another communication
platform going by the statistics that say on average any company needs to have 7-
8 touch points to get noticed by its potential customers, and that's how the
Company launched Twitter in the first quarter of the year.
The Company delivered marketing campaigns across owned, earned & paid
media consisting Social Media Marketing, Email Marketing, Affiliate Marketing,
SMS Marketing, Mobile & Website Marketing.
With a commitment to make our customer relationship palette more colorful, and
full of happiness, the Company launched the brand campaign ‘Chhoti Khushiyan
Badhti Rahein' and started a conversation in a world that was full of disbelief, fear,
uncertainty at that time. The Company brought forward and reiterated the
importance of little joys in life that brings the widest smiles. And the Company
did it with a bouquet full of offers on our cards to help our customers plan their
festivities, starting from Ganesha Chathurthi in August to Diwali Festive
Shopping Rewards, and then to ring in New Year with more cheers followed till
Holi in March. Festivals were planned with elan for our customers, so the
everyday shopping rewards with saving delights on every transaction.
All throughout, the Company kept data in front of our eyes, and strategically
blended it for our demand generation efforts; to keep the marketing funnel of
Awareness >> Consideration >> Conversion consistently agile, and have all the
way from the anonymous social fan or website visitor to a delighted customer
throughout the customer’s lifetime. The Company did brand campaigns for each
of the funnels and kept striving for new customers while continuously thriving
association with our existing family.
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e The Company gained new fans for each of our social platforms, increased
impressions for our brand communications, and excelled at creating customer
engagements.

While doing all of this, the Company also launched new products including
IRCTC, Unnati, Varunah, HPCL with compelling product propositions to attract
the right customers while foraying into new markets.

s
gt

Visit

https:/ /bobfin.in/ Facebook
https:/ /bobfin.in/ Instagram
https:/ /bobfin.in/ YouTube
htips: / /bobfin.in/ Twitter
https: / /bobfin.in/ Linkedin

LIKE, SHARE, COMMENT, and most importantly, please FOLLOW our company
pages for new updates and exciting marketing initiatives.
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I\ NE (MPs):
At the last Annual General Meetmg of the Company, held on 29% September, 2021,
the members had approved the appointment of Ms. Archana Pandey (DIN 08089545)

who was retiring by rotation and offered herself for reappointment.

Following changes in the office of Directorship of the Company have taken place
during FY 2021-22:

» Shri Atul Malik (DIN 07872539) resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f
from 31st October, 2021. The Board noted and confirmed the cessation of Shri
Atul Malik from the post of Director of the Company. w.e.f closing hours of 30t
October, 2021 (effective 31.10.2021) in its meeting held on 30t October, 2021.
The Board recorded its appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Shri
Atul Malik during his tenure as an Independent Director of the Company and
expressed its gratitude for the same.

Ms. Archana Pandey (DIN 08089545) resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f
from 31st October, 2021. The Board noted and confirmed the cessation of Ms.
Archana Pandey from the post of Director of the Company. w.e.f closing hours
of 30t October, 2021 (effective 31.10.2021) in its meeting held on 30 October,
2021. The Board recorded its appreciation for the valuable services rendered by
Ms. Archana Pandey during her tenure as a Non-executive Director of the
Company and expressed its gratitude for the same.

Ms. Kadgatoor Venkateshmurthy Sheetal (DIN 09409028) had been appointed
as Nominee Director (Non Executive) of the Company w.e.f 15t December, 2021
by the Board of Directors vide circular resolution dated 24t November 2021.

Shri Sanjay Kao (DIN 09447175), was appointed as an Additional Director and
subsequently appointed as Independent Director with effect from 17t January,
2022 by the Board of Directors in their meeting dated 29t December, 2021.

On the basis of declarations given by the independent directors to the Company that
they meet the criteria of “Independence” as per the provisions of Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board is of the opinion that the independent directors
possess integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency).

KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs):

In terms of Sec 203 of the Comparues Act 2013, the details of KMPs as on 31/03/2022
are as under:-

Name Designation

Shri Shailendra H. Singh Managing Director & CEO
Ms. Pooja Karnani Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Deepashri Cornelius Company Secretary
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TMYWERNANCE:
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The C_c;r_npa;ly' ‘maintained its commitment to achieve high standard of corporate
governance. The Company is in compliance with all applicable norms as are in force
from time to time.

1. Board Meetings
The Board met at least once in every quarter. Notices of the meetings were sent well
m advance along with a detailed agenda and supporting documents. Five Board
Meetings were held during F.Y. 2021-22.

Sr. No. | Quarter Date of Meeting
1 April - June April 7, 2021 & May 11, 2021

2 July — September August 10, 2021
3 October - December October 30, 2021
4 January - March February 10, 2022

b. Directors attendance record
Attendance record of the Directors for the Board Meetings held during F.Y.2021-22 is
as follows:

Directors No. of Board Last AGM Attendance

Meetings (28/09/2021)
held/attended
during his/her
tenure

Shri Sanjiv Chadha 5/5 Absent

Shri Vikramaditya Singh Khichi 5/5 Absent
Shri Purshotam 5/5 Present
Shri Atul Malik 4/4 Absent

Prof. Sharad Sarin 5/5 Absent

Ms Archana Pandey 4/4 Absent

Shri Sanjay Kao 1/1 Not applicable

Ms Kadagatoor Venkateshmurthy 111 Not applicable
Sheetal

Shri Shailendra Singh 5/5 Present
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The Composition and other required details of the Board of Directors as on 31st
March, 2022 are given below:
Names Category Designation With Effect
From
Shri Sanjiv Chadha Nominee Director Chairperson 01.05.2020
(Non Executive
Director)
Shri Vikramaditya Nominee Director Director 14.03.2019
Singh Khichi (Non Executive
Ditrector)
Shri Sanjay Kao Independent Non- Director 17.01.2022
Executive Director
Prof. Sharad Sarin Independent Non- Director 19.09.2017
Executive Director
Ms. Kadagatoor Non-Executive Director 01.12.2021
Venkateshmurthy Director
Sheetal
Shri Purshotam Non-Executive Director 11.11.2020
Director
Shri Shailendra Singh Executive Director Managing 06.06.2020
Director & CEO

‘ES OF THE BOARD

Currently, there are 3 Board Committees - the Audit & Risk Management Committee,
the Human Resources and Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The terms of reference of the Board
Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Meetings of each Board
Committee are convened and conducted in accordance with applicable secretarial
standards. Matters requiring the Board’s attention/approval, as emanating from the
Board Committee Meetings, are apprised to the Board and placed for approval before
the Board as required.. The role and composition of these Committees, including the
number of meetings held during the F.Y. and the related attendance, are provided
below.

A. Audit and Risk Management Committee:
The Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Board is interalia responsible for
(including terms in consonance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013):
1. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;
2. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;
. Examination of the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon;
. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with
related parties;
. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
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8. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related
matters.

9. Evaluation of potential external/internal threats/risks (existing or likely) to
the Company.

10. Review and Monitor the implementation of various risk measures

11. Review of the functions of Risk Management Department.

12. Take decisions on matters as may be referred to it from time to time by the
Board.

The existing constitution of Audit & Risk Management Committee is as under:-

Sr. | Name Designation

Shri Sanjay Kao Chairperson

Prof. Sharad Sarin Member

Shri Purshotam Member

4 meetings of the said Committee were held during F.Y.2021-22. Audit & Risk
Management Committee meetings are usually attended by the Managing Director,
Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Internal Auditors and
representatives of the Statutory Auditors. Senior Executives of the Company are
invited to participate in deliberations as appropriate.

The recommendations made by the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board during F.Y.2021-22 were mostly accepted by the Board. The details of meetings
attended by the members of the said Committee during the F.Y. 2021-22 are given
below:

Directors IDesignation No. of MeetingNo. of Meetings
held during hisattended
tenure

Shri Sanjay Kao* Chairperson 1

Prof. Sharad Sarin Member 3

Shri Atul Malik* IMember 4

Shri Purshotam [Member 1 1

* Shri Atul Malik ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f 31/10/2021 and consequently
as a member of the ARMC

#Shri Sanjay Kao was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company a member of the
ARMC w.e.f17/01/2022

B. Human Resources and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (HR & NRQ):
The HR & NR Committee is, inter alia, responsible:
1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with this set criteria.
2. To recommend Board appointment and removal of such persons.
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3. To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its
committees and individual directors to be carried out and review its
implementation and compliance .

. To formulate criteria for qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of Directors.

. To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors,
KMP and other employees.

. To review and provide recommendations on, including but not limited to,
Designations, Organisation & Grade Structure, Compensation Benchmarking
with Annual Increment & Variables, Performance Management System, LTI/
ESOP.

. To review, monitor and make recommendations to the Board on human
resource strategies/policies that pertain to staffing, compensation, benefits,
and related issues of strategic importance.

. To review and provide recommendations to the Board concerning the
approval or amendments to the Human Resource policy.

. To report its actions and recommendations, if any to the Board after each
Committee meeting,.

The existing constitution of HR & NRC is as under:-

Sr. No. | Name Designation
1 Prof. Sharad Sarin Chairperson
2. Shri Atul Malik* Member
3 Ms. Archana Pandey* Member
E Shri Sanjay Kao# Member

5 Ms K.V. Sheetal* Member
* Shri Atul Malik & Ms Archana Pandey ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f
31/10/2021 and consequently as a member of the HR&ENRC

# Shri Sanjay Kao and Ms. K.V. Sheetal were appointed as members of the HRNRC w.e.f

17/01/2022

5 HR & NRC Meetings was held during F.Y.2021-22. The details of the meetings
attended by the members during F.Y. 2021-22 are given below:

Directors Designation No. of Meeting | No. of

held during Meetings
his/her tenure | attended
Prof.Sharad Sarin Chairperson 5
Shri Atul Malik Member
Ms. Archana Pandey Member
Shri Sanjay Kao Member
Ms K.V. Sheetal Member

The recommendations made by the Human Resources & Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board during F.Y.2021-22 were mostly accepted by
the Board.
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. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR mitkes
The CSR Co:m.m.tttee is, inter aha responslble for formulatmg and monitoring the CSR
Policy of the Company. The Committee also has the responsibility to recommend
annual CSR plan and budget of the Company to the Board of Directors.

The existing constitution of CSR Commiittee is as under:-

Name Designation

Shri Purshotam Chairperson
Prof. Sharad Sarin Member
Shri Shailendra H. Singh Member

The CSR policy adopted by the Company is placed on the Company’s website at
https:/ /www.bobfinancial.com/ public-disclosures.jsp .

No meetings were held during the F.Y. 2021-22 since the matter were approved by the
Committee vide circular resolution.

For EY. 2021-22, the Company had carried forward from previous FY 2020-21
Rs.18.95 Lacs to various activities/projects towards CSR. During FY 2021-22, the
Company spent the remaining balance of Rs.18.95 Lacs. Majority part of unspent
amount consisted of ongoing projects. All the recommendations/approvals
(including circular resolutions), made by the CSR Committee were duly
accepted/noted by the Board during the year.

As per statutory requirement, the Annual Report on CSR Activities for the year ended
31st March, 2022 is enclosed as Annexure “A"”
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Annual General Meetings:-

=)
)
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Financial
Year

Date

Time

Venue

Special Resolutions
Passed, if any

2020-21

28.09.2021

11.00
AM.

Himgiri Meeting Room ,
Ground Floor, Bank of
Baroda, Baroda Corporate
Centre, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400051

2019-20

28.09.2020

Jeevan Meeting Room ,
Ground Floor , Bank of
Baroda, Baroda Corporate
Centre , Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400051

Appointment of
Shri Shailendra
Singh as MD & CEO
of the Company and
payment of

remuneration

2018-19

27.09.2019

Jeevan Meeting Room ,
Ground Floor , Bank of
Baroda , Baroda Corporate
Centre , Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbeai - 400051

(i) Alteration in
AOA by
substituting
clause pertaining
to tenure of
appointment of
independent
directors

(ii) Reappointment
of independent
directors for a
further period of
3 years
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Extra-Ordinary General Meetings:-

Financi | Date

al Year

Time

Venue

Special Resolution(s)
Passed

2021-22 [ 17.05.2021 | 11.00

AM.

Jeevan Meeting Room ,
Ground Floor, Bank of
Baroda , Baroda Corporate
Centre , Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400051

Increase in borrowing
limits to Rs.1500
Crores

21.06.2021

Jeevan Meeting Room ,
Ground Floor, Bank of
Baroda , Baroda Corporate
Centre , Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai — 400051

Change in place of
Keeping of Register of
Members

2020-21 | 18.11.2020

Jeevan Meeting Room ,
Ground Floor, Bank of
Baroda , Baroda Corporate
Centre , Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400051

1) Increasein
authorised share
capital from Rs.200
crores to Rs.400
crores
Alternation of C1. V
of the
Memorandum of

Association
(Capital clause)

2019-20 | 28.02.2020

Jeevan Meeting Room ,
Ground Floor, Bank of
Baroda , Baroda Corporate
Centre , Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400051

17.06.2019

8A Meeting Room , 8th
Floor, Bank of Baroda ,
Baroda Corporate Centre,
Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai -
400051

To consider
borrowing approval
up to Rs.1150 Crores.
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ECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to Sectlon 134(3)( ) and 134( ) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, to
the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed and proper explanations provided relating to material
departures, if any;

(i) such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
judgments and estimates made that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial
Year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(iif) proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, have been taken for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(iv) the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD EVA

As per the prov:smns of Sectlon 134(p) r/w section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 a

formal evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees

and Individual Directors have been carried out for FY 2021-22.

For F.Y.2021-22, a separate Independent Director's Meeting was also held on 4t
February, 2022.

The Board believes that all Directors upheld highest standards of integrity, adhered to
Company's code of conduct, made constructive and effective contribution at meetings

and generally carried out their responsibilities well in the interest of the Company
and its stakeholders.

INFORMATION PURSUANT SECTION 197 OF THE

/W RULES 4 & 5 OF THE ﬁtﬂ‘f\” ‘151...:'_'

'}r MANAGERIAL [”"""‘NN L) RULES 2014:

/ T’f‘ JINTM !*._a?-_l'i'

1. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:
The total managerial remuneration (including sitting fees) paid to the Managing
Director and other Directors during F.Y.2021-22 was in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Members had accorded
their approval for remuneration paid/payable to Shri Shailendra Singh (DIN
08751442), holding the position of Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of
the Company during FY 2021-22 in the Annual General Meeting dated 28.09.2020.
17
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ARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
None of the employees draws salary more than the prescribed limit requiring
disclosure in this report. None of the employees holds any equity share of the
Company.

INT \I. CONTROL SYSTEM Pete o et e

N |,.. CC | DA & THEIR ADBOUA Y

In terms of sectlon 134 of the Ccmpa.rues Act, 2013 the Company has an internal
control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.
These internal controls ensure that all assets of the Company are safeguarded and
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

The key elements of internal control systems of the Company are as follows:
Clearly defined organization structure and limits of authority.
Well defined key responsibility areas and key performance indicators at various
levels.
Appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring.
Corporate policies for financial reporting, accounting, information security and
corporate governance.

To maintain objectivity and independence, the adherence to internal controls and
their adequacy was reviewed by the Internal Auditors who report to the Audit & Risk
Management Committee. For F.Y.2021-22, M/s Borkar & Muzumdar, Chartered
Accountants were appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company. The Internal
Auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system,
its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies in the
Company. Based on the report of internal auditors, process owners undertake
corrective action in their respective areas and thereby further strengthen the controls.
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the
Audit and Risk Management Committee from time to time.

A qualified and independent Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Board of
Directors reviewed the Internal Audit reports and the adequacy of internal control
systems at quarterly intervals during F.Y. 2021-22 and their suggestions/observations
were duly discussed and appropriately implemented by the Company.

The Company was not required to maintain the cost records as per Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013,

NCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIA

Based on the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and
the relevant Board Committees, the Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
in place, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
commensurate with the size and nature of the business of the Company. During the

18
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year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design
or operation were observed.

PTeT
|

CMANAGEMENT:

As per Section 134_(3)_of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company undertakes regular
review of its risk profile and keeps the Board of Directors adequately informed about
the risk profile and the measures identified to mitigate such risks.

The Company originally had a “Risk Management Committee” constituted by the
Board in its meeting dated 29% September, 2009, comprising of senior executives of
the Company. However, basis the opinion of the Audit Committee the said “Risk
Management Committee” was discontinued and accordingly, the Audit Committee
was retitled as “Audit and Risk Management Committee” in September- 2017 and
entrusted additional areas to oversee potential external or internal threats to the
Company and to review the functions of Risk Management Department. The
Company has constituted the Assets Liability Management Company (ALCO)
consisting of senior management personnel primarily for ALM processes in the
Company. The Company has also constituted a Product and Process Approval
Committee (PPAC) to evaluate proposed products and processes in pre-launch phase
post initial risk evaluation.

SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS, COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING GOING CONCERN AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS: -
To the best of our knowledge, the Company has not received any such orders from
regulators, courts or tribunals during the year which may impact the going concern

status of the Company or its operations in future.

ANNUAL RETURN:
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) and 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of
the Company can be accessed on the Company’s website
https: / / www.bobfinancial.com/ public-disclosures.jsp

AT T

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, TFOREX
EARNINGS, AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 r/w Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Account ) Rules 2014, are
given below:

A. Conversation of energy:

1. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy :

The Company is in the business of Card Issuance, Operations & Transaction
Settlement Services. The nature of business is purely service oriented.

The Company’s activities do not require substantial energy consumption.
However the Company continues to lay emphasis on reducing energy
19
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consumption by constantly monitoring the consumption and taking steps to
reduce wasteful use of energy.

As a measure of energy conservation, the Company had taken the following
steps:
e Replaced legacy [T equipment with low energy consuming devices.
° Made necessary arrangement to work from home using Laptops
instead of Desktops during pandemic and helped conserve electricity

3. Techmology absorption:

i.  Efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company offered a customer self-service portal in order to facilitate credit
card holders/ merchants to make payment and track/review their transaction
details online. An ‘Insta-pay’ feature on the Company’s website facilitated easy
payment mode to the customer.

The Company introduced SMS Banking Service with self-serve options like
Balance Inquiry, Card Blocking, Reward points, Last Statement Inquiry, open
domestic e-commerce limit to facilitate effective contactless service.

The Company also introduced various alternative and easy modes of Payment
channels like BBPS, Pay using SMS link to promote contactless payments
through online modes. The hard copy statements had been reduced
significantly following a ‘GO GREEN' drive.

The Company also promoted “GREEN PIN” (online generation of PIN
through self-service portal) functionality, under which, the customers are
requested to generate online PIN through self-service portal instead of sending
the physical PIN mailer.

Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or impact substitution:
The above technology initiatives helped the Company in:

» reducing cardholder complaints pertaining to bills not received

» saving time & energy of customers in making payment

» reduction of dispatch cost of hard copies of the bills and PIN mailers

iii.  The expenditure incurred on Research and Development : Nil

C. Foreign exchange Receipts and outgo:*
The Foreign Exchange receipts represented actual inflows during F.Y.2021-22 and the
Foreign Currency expenditure represented outgo during the year in terms of actual

outflows.

Activities in foreign currency :
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The Company receives funds in foreign currency for settlement of international
transactions. The Company gets debited towards settlement agency charges in foreign

currency.
(Amount in Rs. millions)
Particulars E.Y. 2021-22 E.Y. 2020-21
Foreign Exchange Income: 23.61 29.72

(Income from Credit Card International
Operation, currency conversion charges,
business development incentive income)

Expenditure in foreign currency (Scheme 309.84 263.96
Charges)
“The information on Foreign Exchange receipts and outgo is also furnished in the Note No.44
in the Notes to Accounts under the heading “Expenditure in Foreign Exchange”.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
There have been no material transactions with Directors or the Key Management
Personnel and their relatives during F.Y.2021-22 that could have potential conflict

with the interest of the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, all related party transactions, with Bank of Baroda
(holding company) and/or its other subsidiaries/associates during F.Y.2021-22 were
on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. The particulars of
contracts/arrangements entered into with related parties are disclosed in AOC-2,
appended as an Annexure B to this Report.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board for their approval. Transactions with related parties, as per
the requirements of Ind-AS, are disclosed to the notes to accounts annexed to the
financial statements.. The latest policy on related party transactions is available on our
website at https:/ / www.bobfinancial.com/public-disclosures.jsp

STATUTORY AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors” Report dated 4% May, 2022 on the financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2022 alongwith corrigendum dated
20% July 2022 is enclosed with the Financial Statements of the Company.

There was no observation, qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by
Statutory Auditors under provisions of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For F.Y. 2021-22, the C&AG has issued a clean report, with no comments on the
financial statements of the Company (Copy of the same is forming the part of Annual
Report).

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION:
In accordance with Section 142 r/w section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
remuneration of Statutory Auditors is required to be fixed by the Company in its
Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, an Ordinary Resolution will be proposed at
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the forthcoming Annual General Meeting seeking approval for the remuneration
recommended by the Board and further authority for the Board to finalize with the
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
(C&AG) for the F.Y.2022-23.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Directors have devised proper S}Ef:ems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Management Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Board had appointed M/s. Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates, a firm of Company
Secretaries in practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
F.Y.2021-22.

There was no observation, qualification or reservation made by the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company. The detailed report of the Secretarial Auditors is appended
as an Annexure C to this Report.

VIGILANCE MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and a Vigilance Policy. The mechanism
under these Policies has been communicated within the organisation. The objective of
this mechanism is to eliminate and help to prevent malpractices, to investigate and
resolve complaints, take appropriate action to safeguard the interests of the Company
and to ensure that whistle blower is protected. The Company has appointed a Chief
Vigilance Officer (Chief Manager from BOB) for the purpose of reporting, enforcing
and monitoring the Vigilance Policy and Whistle Blower Policy.

Preventive Vigilance Manual covering all functions have been prepared and
circulated internally. The Company organized Knowledge sharing sessions with its
employees on preventive vigilance during FY 2021-22,

The Company had received 1 complaint under Whistle Blower Policy during FY 2021-
22 which was investigated and disposed off within timelines.

No complaint having vigilance angle was received during FY 2021-22.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The Company follows the fit and proper criteria as laid down by RBI Directions and
the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company laid down under
Section178(2)&(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and RBI Directions / circulars for
appointment of Directors. The Human Resources & Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board recommends the appointment / re-appointment of a Director
on the basis of satisfactory compliance of fit and proper criteria.
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INFORMATION PURSUANT RULE 14 OF THE SEXUAL HARASMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL
RULES, 2013:

The Company has duly constituted Internal Committee in compliance with the
provisions of section 4 of the “Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” and the Rules there under. The
Committee is inter alia responsible to inquire into sexual harassment complaints by
aggrieved women and recommend appropriate action.

During the year, under review, the Company had received 2 complaints of sexual
harassment and both were disposed as per the policy guidelines.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

The Board of Directors acknowledge with gratitude the utmost co-operation and
support extended by Bank of Baroda, Visa / Master Card International/NPC],
Service Providers, Merchant Establishments, Statutory & Internal Auditors,
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, Reserve Bank of India, BSE and all the
valued customers and expect their continued support and patronage in future too.

The Board wishes to place on record its deep appreciation for the dedicated service
rendered by employees at all levels, enabling the Company to help achieve its growth
plan during the year.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OF BOB FINANCIAL
g, SOLUTIONS LIMITED

3 .

¢ UL 7027 [Sarfjiv Chadha]
Date: ] 0 JUL LULE Chairperson
Place: Mumbai. (DIN 08368448 )




Annexure “A”

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

In adherence to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors, upon the
recommendations of its CSR Committee, has adopted a Company policy on CSR.

The thrust areas of the policy are - promoting empowerment of woman and other
weaker sections of society, supporting education of under privileged children / girl
child, sponsoring vocational education for women, financial literacy, Disaster relief,
conservation of environment, health care programs, contribution to the prime minister

national relief fund or any other funds of the government of India.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

The constitution of CSR Committee during FY 2021-22 was as under:-

Sr. | Name Designation
No.

L Shri Purshotam Chairman

2. Prof. Sharad Sarin Member

4, Shri Shailendra H. Singh Member

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The CSR policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company under web-link:

https:/ / www.bobfinancial.com/ public-disclosures.jsp

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,

2014, if applicable (attach the report)
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Not applicable since the Company is having average CSR obligation less than Rs.10 crores
in pursuant to section 135(5) of the Act, in the three immediately preceding financial years.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set off for the financial year, if any

Not applicable since the Company had not spent amount in excess of requirement
provided under sub-section (5) of section 135 during FY 2021-22

Sr. No. | Financial Year Amount available | Amount required
for set-off from |to be setoff for the
preceding financial | financial year, if
years (in Rs) any (in Rs)

Not applicable

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

Amount (in Lacs)

Particulars F.Y.2018-19 (A) | F.Y.2019-20 F.Y. 2020-21
As per IGAAP B) (©)
As per IGAAP | As per INDAS*
Profit before Tax 605.35 (3494.85) (2253.42)
Add: Capital Expenses and loss | 0.45 7.40 27.40
on sale of Fixed Assets
605.80 (3487.45) (2226.02)
Average Net Profit(A+B+C/3) (5108.07)/3
2% N.A.

*As per INDAS

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
NIL

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years. NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). NIL
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8.(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Rs.16,66,800/-

(¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e ) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): NIL

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr. No. Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount
financial transferred | spent fund specified under remaining to be
year to Unspent | in the Schedule VII as per section spent in succeeding
CSR reporting 135(6), if any. financial
Account Financial Name Amou | Amou | years (in Rs.)
under Year of the ot (in | nt (in
section 135 | (in Rs.). Fund Rs) Rs)
(6)
(in Rs.)
1 2019-20 45,75,300 6,78,000 E - - 38,97,300
2 2020-21 38,97,300 22,30,500 - - - 16,66,800
3 2021-22 16,66,800 16,66,800 - - Nil

9. (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

1 [ () @) ) (6) @) ®) ©)
Sr. | ProjectID | Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative | Status of
No. the Year in duration. | amount | spenton amount the project
Project. which the allocated | the project | spent -
project was for the in the at the end Completed
commenced project reporting of /Ongoing.
(inRs.). | Financial reporting
Year (in Financial
Rs). Year. (in
Rs.)
1. Girija Medical 2019-20 One year | 535,000 | 3,40,000 5,35,000 Completed
Welfare Camps and (extended
Association | Health till 21-22
awareness i
sessions Covid-19
)
2 Ahaan (A) Cyber 2019-20 One year | 8,50,000 | 5,81,800 8,50,000 Completed
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Foundation Sakhi (extended
till 21-22
(B) Building due to
Digital Covid-19
Guardian )
3. PM CARES | support 2021-22 one time | 7,45,000 | 7,45,000 7.,45,000 Completed
Fund relief or
assistance of
any kind
relating to a
public
health
emergency
TOTAL 21,30,000 | 16,66,800 21,30,000

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). NOT APPLICABLE

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. NOT APPLICABLE

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc. NOT APPLICABLE

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset). NOT APPLICABLE

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5)

NOT APPLICABLE
= -
Shailendra H. Singh Purshotam
Managing Director & CEO Chairperson - CSR Committee
DIN: 08751442 DIN: 08504005
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FORM NO.AOC -2

Annexure “B”

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso

thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm'’s length basis. -

NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis (for
the Financial Year 2021-22).

Sl. | Name (s) | Nature of Duration | Salient terms of the | Amou

No | of the contracts/arrangemen | of the contracts or | nt
related ts/transaction contracts | arrangements or | paid
party & /arrange | transaction including | as
nature of ments/tr | the value, if any advan
relationsh ansaction ces, if
ip any

1 Bank Of Merchant Operations 3 years Management of | No
Baroda merchant acquiring
(Holding business by the
Company) Company for the Bank.

Arrangement is for 3
years from the date of
agreement unless
terminated earlier in
accordance with the
terms of the executed
agreement.

2 Bank Of Advertisement Ongoing | Income from Bank of | No
Baroda Baroda for Advertising
(Holding Arrangement
Company)

3 Bank Of Fixed Deposits Ongoing Fixed Deposits No
Baroda
(Holding
Company)

4 Bank Of Rent 5 years Rent Paid to Bank of | No
Baroda Baroda for using its
(Holding premises.

Company)

5 Bank Of Short Term Borrowings | Ongoing Regular arrangements | No
Baroda of Credit Facility
(Holding
Company)

6 Bank Of Income from Ongoing Income from Bank of | No
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Baroda(Hol | Consultancy services Baroda for providing

ding professional manpower

Company) services.

Bank Of Royalty 3 years Royalty paid for usage | No

Baroda(Hol of logo

ding

Company)

Bank Of Direct Sales services Ongoing Direct sales services to | No

Baroda(Hol be provided by

ding Company’s personnel to

Company) promote Bank's asset
products, solicit
customers and
maximize for the Bank
in various territories.

IndiaFirst | Gratuity fund Ongoing | Contributions towards

life gratuity fund.

Insurance

limited(Ass

ociate-

Bank of

Baroda)

Baroda Investment in Mutual Ongoing Investments in Units of | No

Asset Funds Mutual Funds as per

Manageme Investment Policy of the

nt Company.

Company

(Subsidiary

-Bank of

Baroda)

Baroda Issuance & back-office Ongoing | Processing of credit | No

Global operations card issuance and

Shared Customer service back

Services office operations

Limited

(Subsidiary

-Bank of

Baroda)

For BOB Financial Solutions Limited

A rin] o
L 3ﬂr.1dl‘s o
/ ‘\‘(},‘-F'-'-"—t‘ijlgr

(DIN : 08368448) it ="
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

F O = IET MYDAADTH

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS
A. The Indian Credit Cards Industry & Key Developments in FY 21-22
Overview

The Indian credit card industry is expected to grow at a CAGR of more than 25%
during 2020 - 2025. There are several factors contributing to the estimated growth of
Indian Credit Card industry. The push for digital payments, both by the government
and RBI, is a key factor. This is having a positive impact both on the issuance as well
as the acceptance side. Customers who were hesitant towards plastic money are
made aware of the safety and convenience of digital modes of payment (that
includes credit card), and are adopting them at a faster pace. Customers also have
several points of acceptance, both physical and online, for using their credit card.

Another key factor driving credit card growth is increase in issuance to customers
from non-metros and smaller towns. The share of Millennials or the young
population between 18-25 years of age is another significant factor driving credit
card growth.

While there are several more factors driving new credit card acquisition, new
underwriting methods made possible by alternative scoring and other demographic
and behavioural insights created/adopted by FinTechs are also helping in
continuously expanding the customer base that could be targeted for credit cards.
The usage of newly issued credit cards is made possible by the push for digital
payments, which has taken acceptance to every nook and corner of the country.
Credit Cards are now being used to make payments for utility bills, educational
expenses, healthcare, insurance, government payments in addition to the traditional
purchases of grocery, electronics, apparel and fuel.

The COVID19 pandemic migrated most credit cardholders to online or e-commerce
transactions, thereby opening up even more avenues for credit card usage.

The adoption of Buy Now Pay Later or Equated Monthly Instalment (EM]) is also
contributing to the growth in usage of credit cards. More cardholders are refusing to
postpone their purchases, armed with several attractive EMI options offered by the
credit card issuers, frequently without any additional cost, in partnership with
manufacturers or large merchants.

Industry Structure

The Indian Credit Cards industry had 34 issuers with more than 7.36 cr. credit cards
outstanding as of 31st March 2022. (source — RBI data)



The number of credit cards grew approximately 19% from 6.2 cr. as of March 2021 to
7.36 cr. as of March 2022. The growth was more than double compared to FY 20-21,
aided by easing of the pandemic and lifting of regulatory embargo (on new issuance)
on a large issuer.

In terms of spends, the industry grew by 54% in FY 21-22 compared to FY 20-21
(from Rs. 6.32 lakh cr. to Rs. 9.75 lakh cr.). This was a welcome recovery after the
14% fall in spends in the previous FY, primarily due to the restrictions imposed to
contain the pandemic.

In other key industry developments, the regulator continued to mandate measures
that would increase the security of transactions and give more control to the
customer. These were manifested in measures like Card Control, E-Mandates and
Tokenization.

The share of digital, both in new customer acquisition as well as usage (e-commerce
transactions) continued to increase, along with increase in Fintech activity in terms
of product and process innovations to enhance customer experience.

B. The performance of BOB Financial vis-a-vis the industry in FY 21-22

The Company grew at a rate of 71% (from 6.45 lakh cards to 11.04 lakhs). The
Company ranked 12th in terms of number of cards as of March 2022. The market
share increased to 1.5% as of March 2022 from 1.04% as of March 2021.

For the Company, spends more than doubled, growing by 103% in FY 21-22
compared to FY 20-21. The spends grew to approx. Rs.6,900 cr. from approx. Rs.
3,400 cr. The Company ranked 13t as of March 2022, in terms of credit card spends.
The market share improved to 0.7% from 0.5% in FY 20-21.

OUR GROWTH & KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF FY 21-22

The Company has exhibited exceptional growth from FY 17-18 to FY 21-22 across the
following key business metrics:

Number of Cards: The number of cards has grown 9 times (from 1.25 lakhs to more
than 11.02 lakhs)
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New acquisition in a Financial Year: New acquisition has grown 37 times (from 0.14
lakhs to more than 5.12 lakhs)
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Spends in a Financial Year: Spends have grown 7 times (from Rs. 1,000 cr. to Rs. 6,900
cr.)

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

The Company identifies, and is cognizant of the following key Opportunities and
Threats:

Opportunities

. Lower Penetration of credit cards vs other developing economies

. Youth and Smaller Locations driving growth in digital payments

. Penetration of Smart Phones driving e-Commerce across geographies

. Market integration through partnerships and collaboration

Threats

. Regulatory mandates requiring investments and time

. Disruptive strategies by hi-tech / new age fintech companies

. Higher provisions or losses in case of unexpected developments like the

pandemic or economic downturns

- SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company operations are in India and hence there is no segment reporting by
geographical segment. The Company has reviewed and reconsidered the
requirements of presenting segment information and accordingly identified
business segment as the primary segment for disclosures in accordance with Ind AS
108 on segment reporting. The Company has identified credit card (issuing),
merchant (acquiring), debit card and other as the business segments.



Out of total revenue of approx. Rs 500 crores, the Company earned majorly
Rs.359.61 crores from credit card (issuing).

Please refer Note 40 of the audited financial statements for detailed segment-
wise performance.

OUTLOOK & RISKS AND CONCERNS

With all economies opening up and putting an end to lockdowns and other
Covid-19 related restrictions, the pandemic seems to be a thing of past.
However, problems continue for global economies due to the on-going Russia-
Ukraine war, with increasing oil and other commodity prices. Currently
inflation is at multi-decade high in many economies. Elevated inflation levels
have prompted rate hikes by Global Central Banks RBI. RBI has also hinted it
may further increase rates in coming months if inflation is not under control. The
tense global geopolitical situation and the consequent elevated commodity
prices impart considerable uncertainty to the domestic inflation outlook.
Spillovers from prolonged geopolitical tensions, elevated commodity prices,
continued supply bottlenecks and tightening global financial conditions
nevertheless weigh on the outlook. Early results from manufacturing, services
and infrastructure sector firms polled in the Reserve Bank’s surveys expect
further input and output price pressures going forward.

In view of the cascading effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company had
continued to strengthen its Risk Management framework by aligning its risk
management strategies and policies in line with the risks emanating out of
unsecured lending. The Company modified its NPA provisioning methodology
moving from manual to systemic computations. The Company also continued its
focus on collections and bad debts recovery. The Company focussed on building
its customer base through internal acquisitions, staff referrals and targeting less
vulnerable segments.

The Company revised its risk policies on credit line management with detailed
individual/sector/ card limits, covering multiple risk dimensions. The
Company continued to offer digital payment methods in line with the evolution
in the payment systems across the industry in addition to the conventional
methods of repayment.

The Company had achieved robust growth in FY 2021-22 through strong
sourcing strategy supported by strong parentage of Bank of Baroda. The
Company also has well defined IT processes leading to increase in operational
efficiency and robust risk management practices and credit due diligence norms
exhibiting cautious aggression led by a veteran Board and significantly senior
management team. For FY 23, the Company plans to leverage its strengths to
capitalize on the opportunity is payments space to become one of the top players



in the credit card segment by offering comprehensive range of products and best
in class alliances to suit varied customer segments.

. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations. These internal controls ensure that all assets of
the Company are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use
or disposition and the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported
correctly. The adherence to internal controls and their adequacy 1is
independently reviewed by an external audit firm who reports to the Audit &
Risk Management Committee of the Board.

Please refer “Internal Control Systems and their adequacy” section of the Board
Report for more details.

. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Company’s total revenue from operations increased by 40.44% from
Rs.352.89 crores to Rs. 495.60 crores mainly due to increase in interest on credit
card loans and income from fees and merchant operations. Total operating
expenses increased by 43.5% Rs.200 crores to Rs.287 crores on account of
increase in interchange fee, business promotion expenses, bonus point expenses,
recovery agent charges, software/IT expenses and other administrative
expenses. On an overall level, the Company’s total expenses amounted to
Rs.505.61 crores, thereby resulting in a loss of Rs.10.43 crores after tax
adjustments as compared to Rs.9.6 crores in previous FY 2020-21.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONS FRONT INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

The Company’s headcount including Cards vertical, merchants and DST (Tractor)
stood at 410 as on 315t March 2022.

The Company has been continuously undertaking multiple initiatives for
strengthening and developing its Human capital through various activities to
increase employee engagement, recruitment of right talent, increasing knowledge,
skills & Leadership capabilities, at the same time focussing on Health and Wellness
of team members.

The Company offered best in class e-programs of Ivy league colleges and also
partnered with Baroda Apex Academy in the continuous journey of becoming a
“learning organisation”. The Company also restructured the sales and operations
verticals with a view to increase operational efficiencies.



The Company continued to follow Balanced score card approach to measure its
performance and has a robust performance appraisal management process in place.

The Company was awarded as “Best Places to Work in India” by Ambition Box in
Small Financial Services Company category in India.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

[Sdnjiv Chadha]

Date: ¢ " JUL 2022 Chairperson
Place: Mumbai. (DIN 08368448)




HEMANSHU KAPADIA & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Office No. 12, 14% Floor, Navjivan Society, Building No.3
Lamington Road, Mumbai-400 008

Tel: 022- 6631 0888 /6631 4830

E-mail: hemanshu@hkacs.com

Website: hkacs.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial year ended 315t March 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

BOB Financial Solutions Limited
CIN: U65990MH1994GOI081616
2nd Floor, Baroda House

Behind Dewan Shopping Centre,
Jogeshwari - West,

Mumbai- 400102

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by BOB Financial Solutions Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on the 31% March, 2022, (“the Audit Period”)
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance - mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022,
according to the provisions of:




(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
(Not Applicable to the Company)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(Not Applicable to the Company)

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings. (Not Applicable to the Company as it does not have FDI
or ODI)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulation, 2014; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (Not Applicable to the Company) and




(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(vi) The Company has identified the following as industry specific law applicable to the
Company:

(a) RBI Circulars on Non-Banking Financial Companies (non-deposit accepting,
systematically important) including Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as
notified by the Central Government, and

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following

observation:

BSE Limited has levied a penalty of Rs.1000/- on the Company for late submission of
Statement of Investor Grievance for the quarter ended 31st March 2021 to be filed under
Regulation 13(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period

under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Committee
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.




As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions
of the Board were carried through with requisite majority and no dissenting views have
been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17t May, 2021, has obtained the approval of its
members to increase the borrowing limits upto Rs, 1500 Crores and at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 21st June, 2021, has obtained the approval of members to change
the place of keeping statutory records of the Company.

We further report that during the Audit Period, there were no instances of:

(i) Public/ Preferential issue of shares/sweat equity.
(ii) Redemption / buy-back of securities.

(iii) Merger /amalgamation /reconstruction, etc.

(iv) Foreign technical collaborations.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

}f_ Uu,p«?\_'a.-

Hemanshu Kapadia
Proprietor

C.P. No.: 2285

Membership No.: 3477
UDIN: F003477D000564281

Date: 04t July, 2022
Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.




Annexure A

T,

The Members,

BOB Financial Solutions Limited
CIN: U65990MH1994GOI081616
2nd Floor, Baroda House

Behind Dewan Shopping Centre,
Jogeshwari - West,

Mumbai- 400102

Our report of even date is to be read along with the letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Further, due to COVID-19 restrictions, we had
limited physical access to the documents and have relied on the documents provided
by the Company through electronic mode.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.




6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

j& 2o e
Hemanshu Kapadia
Proprietor
C.P. No.: 2285
Membership No.: 3477

Date: 04t July, 2022
Place: Mumbai




COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statements of BOB Financial Solutions Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act.
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 04 May 2022.

1, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to
conduct the supplementary audit of the financial statements of BOB Financial Solutions
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

i ’Cg/k»/\rﬂ v

(P.V. Hari Krishna)
Principal Director of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai
Place: Mumbai
Date: 22.07.2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,

The members of BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
{“the Company”), which comprisc the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Less (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statcrent of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013(“the Act”) in the manncr so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the statc of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, and its Loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Lthics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thercunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to
1. Note 39 to the financial statcments which explains that the extent to which COVID-19
pandemic will impact the Company's operations and financial results is dependent on
future developments, which are highly uncertain.

2. Note No . 4, to the financial statements , which explains that the Company migrated to the
new card management System (CCMS) First vision™ during the quarter ended 30th Sept
21. Subsequently all the transaction processing for credit card business is being routed
through the new CCMS. As the implementation of the said system is in process, Cash and
Cash Equivalents include Rs 4.85 million (net) in respect of which the clearing is still
under progress.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.



Continuation Sheet ASL & Co.

Chartered Accountanis

BOB Financial Solutions Limited — Audit Report 2021-22

-t 21-

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report is expected to be made available to us after this auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matcrial misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s mapagement and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
scction 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and cstimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and complcteness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a truc and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
crror.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s [inancial reporting
process. '
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objcctives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatcment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it cxists. Misstatements can arise from [raud or crror and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatcment of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from [raud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we arc also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of
Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going
concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit cvidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
unccrtainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may causc the Company to cease to
continuc as a going concern.

o FEvaluate the ovcrall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves [air presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficicneies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged
with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical rcquirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safcguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issucd by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of Indja has issued directions indicating the areas to
be examined in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Act, the compliances of
which is set out in the Annexure “B”.

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we rcport that:

(a). We have sought and obtained all the information and cxplanations which to the best of our
knowledpe and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b). In our opinion, proper books of account as requircd by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c). The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dcalt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d). In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(¢). On the basis of the writtcn representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Dircctors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(). With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with relerence to financial
statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure “C”.

(g). With respect to the other maltters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the [inancial statements;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derjvative contracts
for which there were any material {orcsceable losses.
iii. There were no amounis which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv.

a) The management has rcpresented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by thc company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign cntities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on bebalf of the
Ultimatc Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, lo the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign cntities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwisc, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or cntities identified in any manner
whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiarics;

and

¢) As per the information and explanation given 1o us , to the best of our knowledge
and beliel, and audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belicve that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-
slatement.

v) The Board has not recommended any dividend during the year and hence provisions of
Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

&7

<ha Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAL UDIN: 22136484 ATIKOKL7256
DATED: -May 04, 2022
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Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ report of even date_on the
Financial Statements of BOB Financial Soluctions Limited for the Year Ended 31% March
2022.

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to wus, wc state as under. Maiters specified in clauses (i)(c)
(e).(ii)(a)(e),(vi),(vil), (ix} {e) (D.(xi) (b) (e),(xii), (xv), (xvi)(b) () (d), (xvil), (xviii), (xx) &
(xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 do not apply to the
Company. Accordingly no comments have been made on the matters not applicable to the
company.

(i)
(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
asscts.

(¢) As per the information and explanations given to us, fixed asscts have been physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification
and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(ii )

(a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the inventory has been physically
verified by the management during the year at reasonable intervals, According to the
information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriatc and no discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class ol Inventory were noticed on verification between the
physical stock and the book records.

(b)) As per information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our knowlcdge and
belief, during the year under review, the company has been sanctioned working capital
limit in excess of T 50 million from bank on the basis of security of the current asscts.
As informed to us , the same was disbursed on the last day of the year under review
and the filing of the quarterly statements and returns , ol the currents assets secured,
was not due till the year end.

(i ) According to information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our
knowledge and belicf, and based on examination of the books and records, during the
year under review the Company has not provided any guarantee and security to any
parties; but the company has made investments and granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans, secured and unsecured during it normal course of business.
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(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
are, prima facie not prejudicial to the company’s interest

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of the books and records, in respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans
granted by the company , the schedule of repayment of principle and payment of
interest has been stipulated and repayments or receipts are regular , cxcept for the
credit impaired cases .

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us , as at the end of the year
under review , the over due for more than 90 days is Rs. 1078.84 millions (before
making provision for Impairment Loss Rs. 910.54 millions ). According to the
information and cxplanations given to us , the company is taking necessary sleps to
recover the same.

(d) As per information and explanations given to us, during the year under review the
company has not any granted loan and advances in the nature of loan , repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment , to promoters and
related parties defined under scction 2(76) of the Companies Act 2013.

(iv ) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of Investments
made during the year under review, the company has complied with the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act 2013
and Rules made there under.

(vi)

(a) As per the records of the Company and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authoritics
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and
other statutory ducs, to the extent applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us , there are no undisputed
amounls payable in respect of provident fund, employee’s statc insurance, incone tax,
sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of more
than 6 months from the datc they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us , there are no of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs and duty of excise duty, value added tax as at March 31, 2022 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute.

(vii )
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not
defaulted in payment of dues to its bank.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us the company is not declared
as a willful defaulter by any banks or {inancial institutions or lenders

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us , and on overall
examination of the financial statcments of the company , funds raised by thc company on
short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposcs.

(viii )  As per information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the
company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year
under review. However certain instances of customer frauds on the company have
been reported during thc ycar. As informed to us , these primarily relate to the
fraudulent usage of the credit cards issued by the company and the total amount
involved is Rs. 10.30 million during the year under review.

(ix ) As per information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statcments as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion , based on the information and explanations given to us, the company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b)  Wec have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit;

(xi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 23" October 1999.
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( xii ) On the basis financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realisations of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying financial
statements , as per the information and explanations given to us, about the board of
directors and management plans , and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our nolice that causes us to belicve
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date ol balance sheel as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

4

(Shikha Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAL. UDIN: 22136484 ATKOKL7256
DATED: - May 04, 2022
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the Financial Statements

of BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the Year Ended 31* March 2022.

Directions under section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013

We have examined the books of accounts of the BOB Financial Solutions Limited [or the year
ended March 31, 2022 and we are submitting our comments and answers to the questions asked in
the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, according to the best ol our
information and explanations given to us by the management and as appears from the examination
of the books of accounts and records produced before us by the Company, which are as under.

S. Directions
No.

Reply

1. | Whether the company has system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If no, the implications
of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

As per the information and explanation given to
us and based on the examination of records on
the test check basis , the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting transaction
through IT system.

2. | Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
of debts /loans/interest efc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
company’s inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.
‘Whether cases arc properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is
Government company, then its direction
is also applicable for statutory auditor of
lender company).

such’

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis
of information and explanations given to us, no
restructuring of any existing loan facility and no
case waiver/writc off from the Company’s lender
in respect of loan facility during the year under
review reportcd.

3. | Whether funds (grant/subsidy ctc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/ State Government or its
agencics were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation,

As per information & cxplanation given to us and
the records produced before us, no funds
(grant/subsidy ctc.) received/ receivable for
specific from  Central/  State
Government or its agencies during the year under
review. Reimbursement receivable under the

schemes
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“Incentive Scheme for promotion of RuPay Debit
Cards and Low Value BHIM-UPI transaction (P2ZM}”
is not considered as Grant / subsidy for this
purpose not considered as Grant / subsidy for this

purpose.

FOR ASL & CO,
Chartered Accountants
{Regn. No 101921 W)

./

(S a Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAL UDIN: 22136484 AIKOKL7256
DATED: - May 04, 2022
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Annexure “C” to_the Independent Auditor’s Report Of Even Date on the Financial
Statements of BOB Financial Solutions Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (*“the Act™).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial rcporting of BOB Financial
Solutions Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Contraols

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the linancial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential componcnts of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Tnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business, including
adhcrence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companics Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements and, both issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements were established and maintained and
whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit cvidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal [inancial controls with reference to the
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with refercnee to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financjal statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainfenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and cxpenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition ol the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls to with reference the financial statcments to future
periods are subject to the risk that the infernal financial control with reference to the financial
statements may bccome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degrec of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, the company has, in all matcrial
respects, an adequate internal financial confrols with reference to the financial statements and
such internal [(inancial controls with reference to the financial statements were operating
cffectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to the financial
statements criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
{Regn. No 101921 W)

4

(Shikha Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAIL UDIN: 22136484AIKOKL 7256
DATED: - May 04, 2022




BOB FINANGIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

CIN: US5990MH1394GOI081616

Balance Shieet as at 31st March-2022

{Figure in Rupees in milions, unless otherwise stated)

As at

Particutars Notes As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
| ASSETS

1 Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 695,97 158.84
Bank balance other than above 5 0.12 -
Trade receivables & 238.44 363.91
Loans 7 12,454.50 7.430.30
nvestments 8 - -
Other financial assets 9 150,00 139.63

. 2 Non-financial assets
Inventories 29.64 1.00
Deferred tax assels {nef} 10 494,14 441 86
Propenrty, plant and equipment " 30.48 127.00
Righl-of-use assets 12 £3.55 81.29
Intangible assels under devclopment 13 0.63. 19,91
Other intangible assets 14 160.09 29.37
Other non-financial assels 15 867.73 678.40
Total assets 15,185.29 9,471.49
Il LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

1 Financial liabilities
Payables
Trade Payables 16
{i) tota! outstanding dues of micre enlerprises and 15.45 1.69
small enferprises
{if) total outstanding dues of credilors other than 139,07 70.54
micro enterprises and small enlerpriscs
Debl securities 17 995.02 4.064.23
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 18 10,116.57 2,584.65
Other financial liabilities 19 230.81 170.58

2 Non-financial lizbilitles
Provisions 20 666,67 438,27
Other non-financial fiabilifies 21 212,22 230.97
Total liahilities 12,375.81 7,560.98
Equity
Equity share capital 22 2,750.00 1,750.00
Other equity 23 59.48 160.51
Total equity 2,809.48 1,910.51
Total liabilities and equity 15,185.2% 9471.49

1-52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements

As per our report of even date
For ASL & Co.
Chartered Accountants

[Firm{RSigtration No. 101921W]
q

Shikha Jain
Partner
{Membership No. 136484}

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4th May 2022.

Fsanilv Chadha

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
BOB Financial Solutions Limited

Chairman
(DIM:08368448)

9‘;\!“’?’

Pacja Kerhani
Chief Finahcial Officer
{PAN:AHEPB7049F)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4th May 2022.

N S

Shallendra Sirgh

T

B
e

Managing Director & CEO

(DIN: 08623335)
- +

Deem

Company Secretary
{PAN:BVLPS3134E)

/el




BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
CIN: U65950MH1994G01081616

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 315t March, 2022

(Figure it Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Fot the year ended:’

Particulars Notes Far the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations
{i} interestincome 24 1,854.09 1,094.62
{il Income from fees and services 25 2,863.31 2,291.58
{iii} Income from Consultancy 111.08 114.48
(iv) Business development incentives 27.53 28.18
{n Total revenue from aperations 4,956.01 3,528.97
{1} Other income 26 40.52 133.82
{li) Total income (f +11) 4,996.53 3,662.69
Expenses
{iy Finance cosl 27 : 441,12 275.80
(i} Impairment on financlal instruments 28 1,028.84 852.83
(i} Employee benefit expenses 29 564.83 585.00
{iv) Depreciation, amertization and impairment 1011812 151.14 168.76
(v} Operating and Other expenses 30 287012 2,000.63
(vi) Corporale social responsibility expenses - -
{v) Total expenses {IV) 5,056.12 3,888.03 |
) Profitf{loss) for the period (ill-Iv) {59.59} (225.34)
Tax Expanse; EY|
(a) Current tax 98.07 74.68
(b) Deferred fax (credity (53.37) {204.00)
(c) Income tax for earlier year - -
M) Total Tax expetse 44,70 {125.32)
Profiti(loss) for the year (V - Vi) (104.29) {96.01}
Vil Other comprehensive income
A [tems that wiil not be reciassifiad to profit or loss
Remeasurement gainf{loss) on defined beneht plan 435 1.95
Income tax impact {1.09) {0.57)
Total (A) 3.28 1.39
B ltems that will be classified to profit or Joss
Reclassification adjustments to statement of profit and - .
lass
Income tax impact - -
Total {B) - -
Other comprehensive income (A + B) 326 1.9
(VI Total comprehensive income for the year {101.03} {54.62)
(1%} Eamings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 32 041} (0.55)
Diluted {Rs.) [0.41) {0.55)
The accompanying notes are an integral par of the financial 1-62
stalements

As per our report of even date
For ASL & Cao.
Chartered Accountants

[Firm tlon Mo, 101921W)
o

Shiktta Jain
Partner
{Membership No. 136484)

Place: Mumbal
Date: 04Lh May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
BOB Fingncial Solutlons Limited

v Chadha

Chalrman
(DIN:DB368448)
\

Chief Finakclal Gfficer
{(PAN:AHERR70G49P)

Place: Mumbai
Date; 4th May 2022,

e:w“d{/
CoMpany Secretary

{(PAN:BVLPS3134E)

T
Shailendra Singﬁq

Managing Director & CEQ
(DIN: 08623335)

ornelius




BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

CIN: U85920MH1994G 0081616

Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Figure in Rupees in miltions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the yearended | .For the year ended
3 March 2022 31 March 2021°
Operating activities
Profit before tax {59.59) {225.34)
Adjustments to reconcile profif before tax (o nef cash flows:
Depreclation & amodisation . i51.14 168.76
Impairment on financlal instrumenls 1,028.84 852.83
Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.06) {0.77)
Write off of fixed assets 0.77 2.74
Interest on lease labilitles 517 7.34
Income from mutual fund (5.34) {4.47)
Finance cost 436.02 27246
Operating Profit Before Worldng Capltal Changes 1,556.86 1.074.55
Working capital changes
{Decrease)! Increase in trade payables B82.29 (80.97)
{Decrease) Increase in other financial Ifabillties 60.23 (31.25)
{Decrease) Increase in other non financlal liabilities {18.75) 113,13
{Decrease) Increase in provisions 23275 105,863
(increase) Decrease in Financlal assels ioans {8,053.04) (4,300.87)
{tncrease) Decrease in Other financial assels {10.37) (76.53)
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory {28.64) 5.08
{Increase) Decrease in ather non financial assets (227.21) (242.88)
{Increase)f Decrease [n trade receivables 125.47 82.22
Income tax paid _ {60.20) {134.70)|
Net cash flows fromf{used in} operating activities (5,897.47) (4,557.25)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment {'FPE" including intangible assets {149.10) {62.07)
Sale proceeds fram PPE 0.06 0,96
Purchase of Inveslments {12,369.75) (7,449.63)
Sale Proceed from Investments 12,375.09 7, 454,10
Net cash flows fromlused in} investing activities (143.70) {56.65)
Financing activities ‘
Proceeds from debt securitles 7,531.82 4,064.28
{ssue of Equity share 1,000.00 -
Repayment of debt securities {3,069.26) {218.88)
Inlerest on lease liabllities (5.17) (7.34)
Inlerest paid (436.02} {272.46)
Met cash generatedi{used In} financing activities 5,021.46 3,565.60
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 537.25 26.25
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 158.84 132.58
Cash and cash equlvalents as at the end of the year £96.09 156.84

Note:

1. The above Cash Flow Statemenl has been prepared under the "indirect Method” as scl out in Indian accounting standard (Ind AS) -7 - ‘Cash Flow
Statemenls' notified under Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2016,

2. Camponent of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in ‘Note 4: Cash and cash equivalent' and Note 5- Bank balance ather than cash and cash

equivalent.

A5 per our report of even date

For ASL & Co. For and on behaif of the Board of Clrectors

Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registrgtion No. 101921W]

5

RBOL Financlal Sclutions Limited

I

.

" Sanfiv Chadha Shallendra Singh
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 08623335)

Shi Jaln

Partner Chalrman

{Membership Mo, 136484) {DIMN:08358448)
LY

shri Ci ilis
Com ¥ Secretary
(PAN:BVLPS3134E)

Place; Mumbai
Date: D4th May 2022

(PAN:AHEPB7043P)

Place: Mumbai
Date; 4th May 2022,

@}61-



BOB FINANGCIAL SOL_UTIONS LIMITED
CIN: U65990MH1994G 01081616

Statement of changes in equity

- {Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. 'Equity Share capital

Particular Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - : -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Changes in equily share capital during the year 10,00,00,000 1,000.00
Balance as at 31 March 2022 27,50,00,000 2,750.00

B. Other Equity

Particular __Reserves and Surplus Total
Statutory Reserve | Retained Earnings )

Balance as at 1 April 2020 362,17 (97.04) 255,14
Add: Loss for the year -

Add: Other comprehensive income - 1.39 1.39
“Transfer lo/from retained earnings - . . (96.01) (96.01)
Balange as at 31 March 2021 352.17 {191.66) 160.51
Add: Loss for the year -

Add: Other comprehensive income - 326 3.26
Transfer to/from retained earnings - {104.29) (104.29}
Balance as at 31 March 2122 352,17 {292.69) 59.48

As per our report of even date
For ASL & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Reglstration Mo, 101921W]

L}

Shikha'Jain
Partner
{Membership No. 136484)

Place: Mumbal
Date: 04th May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
BOB Financlal Solutions Limited

%f"‘"‘—:}cgyj
Shailendra Singh

Managing Director & CEQ
(DIN: 08623335)
! [N

(D1N:08368448)

as omelius
Company Secretary
{PAN:BVLPS3134E}

Chief Finandial Officer
{PAN:AHEPB7049P)

Place: Mumbai
Cate: 04th May 2022




BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Accounting Policies
Note 1: Corporate Information

BOB Financial Solutions Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda and a Non-Deposit
accepting Systemically Important Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC-ND-SI”), holding a
Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The Company is engaged in the
business of issuing credit cards to consumers in India. It also provides support to Bank of Baroda by
carrying out its merchant acquiring operations and manpower/cansultancy services. Until December
2020, the Company was also supporting Bank of Baroda's overseas territory subsidiaries/sponsored
RRB’s for their Debit Cards operation, however all activities refating to these have been now
transferred to respective overseas territory subsidiaries/ sponsored RRB's.

During the year ended March 2022, Company has issued 10 tranches of listed Commercial Papers
which are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). This was first ever listed issuance by the Company.

Note 2: Basis of preparation and presentation
a. Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”} notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of iIndia under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
{amendments) Rules, 2016 and as amended from time to time. Any application guidance/
clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regutators are implemented as and when they are
issued/ applicable.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assurmptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumgptions are
significant to the Company are discussed in Note 3 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions.

b. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (ind AS)
on the basis of Going Concern concept and under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, and in accordance with the accounting policies set out below which are in conformity with Ind
As. These policies have been consistently applied throughout the year.
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c¢. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in millions and rounded off to the nearest
two decimals, except when otherwise indicated. '

d. Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company are presented in order of liquidity and as per Division (Il of
the Schedule Il to of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA}. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current} is presented
in Note 32- Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to
settle on a net basis in the folowing circumstances:
i. The normal course of business
ii. The event of default
iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

e. Statement of Compliance
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

Note 3: Significant accounting policies
3.1. Revenue from operations

The Company's operating revenues are comprised principally of service revenues such as interest
income on financial assets i.e. Overdue credit card outstanding/EM!{ balances, fee earned, target
incentive offered by network partner, service charges from merchant establishment, rental income
from machines deployed, income from consultancy services etc. Other fee and charges include cheque
bounce charge, late fees, over limit fees etc.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payments and exciuding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
Government. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made.

Revenue includes the following:
a) Interest income

Interest income includes interest income on overdues from credit card holders and on EMI based
advances.




Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, excluding those classified as held for trading
or designated at fair value are recognised in ‘Interest income’ and ‘Finance expense’ in the statement
of profit and loss using the effective interest rate method. In view of uncertainty of realization of
income in case of credit impaired assets, such income is accounted for only on receipt basis. Recovery
from impaired debts written off is recognised as income based on actual realisations from customers

b) income from fees and services

The Company sells credit card membership to card holders, income earned from the provision of
membership services is recognised as revenue over the period for which services are provided, net of
reversals/ cancellations,

Revenue from interchange income is recognised when related transaction occurs, or service is
rendered. Other service revenue consists of value-add services provided to the card holders, These
other service revenues are recognised in the same period in which related transactions occur or
services are rendered as revenue is accrued at the point of sale for these services.

¢} Service charges from merchant establishment

All service charges in the form of commissions (MDR}, support fee and POS rental related to merchant
operations are recognised in the same period in which related transactions occurs or services are
rendered as revenue is accrued at the point of sale for these services.

d) Other Income

All other income incfuding income from debit card, consultancy services are recognised in the same
period in which related transactions occurs or services rendered at fair value of consideration net off
expected reversals/ cancellations as revenue is accrued at the point of sale.

e) Business Development Incentive

The Company enters into long-term contracts with network partners for various programs designed
to build payments volume, increase product acceptance. Revenue recognition is based on estimated
perfoermance and the terms of the business arrangements.

f} Unidentified receipts/ old balances & Stale cheques

The total unidentified receipts which could not be credited or adjusted in the customers’ accounts for
tack of complete & correct information is considered as liability in balance sheet. The estimated
unidentified receipts/ old balances aged up to 3 years is written back as income on balance sheet date.
The liability for stale cheques aged for more than three years is written back as income.

g) Income from Investments

Excess of sale price over purchase price of mutual fund units is recognised as income at the time of
sale.




3.2 Expenditure
Expenses are recognised on accrual basis.

a) The incremental cost of acquiring a customer is recognised in the profit and loss statement over the
behavioural life of the customer

b) Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Any expenditure which is directly attributable to borrowing is capitalized and
amortised over the life of borrowing loan.

3.2.1 Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits including shart term compensated absences and statutory bonus/ performance
bonus/incentives payable wholly within twelve months of the end of the period in which the
- employees render the related services are recognised in respect of employee service upto the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution schemes

Retirement/ Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution
plan. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The Company’s contributions to the above Plan are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b} Defined Benefit schemes

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity to all employees. The benefit is in the form of lump sum payments
to vested employees on resignation, retirement, or death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary payable for each completed year of
service as required under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit M'ethod, which recognises each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plan, are based on the market yields of Government bonds as on the valuation date.

The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method on the balance sheet date. The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of

8¢




-the gratui{y of employees at the yéar end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/ (liability)
in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. the Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
nonroutine settlements

Net interest expense or income remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabifity and
the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
lability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.”

Leave encashment

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence and deferred compensation as
per the policy of the Company, the liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the year end. The actuarial valuation method
used by the independent actuary for measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in the actuarial
assumptions are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. Unutilised leave balance that
accrues to employees as at the year-end is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an
undiscounted basis.

National pension scheme {NPS) The Company makes contributions to National Pension System {NPS),
for qualifying employees. Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the payrolt costs to NPS. The contributions payable to NPS by the Company are at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes. The share of Companies contribution is charged to profit and
loss account.

3.2.2 Other expenses

All Other expenses are recognized in the period they occur.
3.2.3 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Current / Deferred tax is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination
or to an item which is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case
the related income tax is also recognised accordingly. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax fiabilities relate to income taxes levied by
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the same taxation aufhority. The Company on'ly off-sets its-deferred tax assets against liabilities when
there is both a legal right to offset and it is the Company’s intention to settle on a net basis.

i) Current Taxes

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable/ receivable in respect of taxable profit/ loss for a
period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
. are never taxable or deductibie in accordance with applicable tax laws. Current tax assets and liabilities
for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid
to, the taxation authorities. Interest income / expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are
included in current tax expense. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
" that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting date in India where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive incomie or in equity}. Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

iiy Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

2. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end
of the reparting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except when the
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aflow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised.




. Unrecoghised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit.or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(eithet in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Iiabi_lities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income tax benefits or expenses in the Statement of
profit and loss except for tax related to the fair value re-measurement of financial assets classified
through other comprehensive income, foreign exchange differences and the net movement on cash
flow hedges, which are charged or credited to Other Comprehensive Income (OC1). These exceptions
are subsequently reclassified from OCI to the statement of profit and loss together with the respective
deferred loss or gain. The Company also recognises the tax consequences of payments and issuing
costs, related to financial instruments that are classified as equity, directly in equity.

3.3. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial Habilities are recognised
when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

3.3.1 Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

3.3.2 Initial measurement

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their

fair value.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised
immaediately in the statement of profit and loss.
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A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet
when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended
to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.3.3 Ciassification and Subsequent measurement of financial instruments

1. Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

These financial assets comprise of bank balances, overdue credit card outstanding/EMI balances,
trade receivables, and other financial assets.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} if
these financial assets are held within a business model whase objective is to hold these assets in order
to collect contractual cash fiows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

ii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of
principal and interest {SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding; and

b) Are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income within
a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or reversals, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or foss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income (except fpr investment in equity shares) is
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

iii} Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, are
measured at FVTPL, Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit and
foss.

i ”
\e (2/8]

S




ftems at fair value through profif or loss comprise:

a) Investments {including equity shares) and stock in trade held for trading;

b} Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

¢) Debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
they arise.

2. Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractuat arrangements and the definitions of a financial
fiability and an equity instrument,

2.1 Financial Liabilities

i} Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR. {Effective Interest Rate)

i} Undrawn credit limits on cards:

Undrawn credit limits on cards are commitments which the Company is required to pay on behalf of
the customer based on pre-specified terms with the customer. Undrawn credit limits on cards
commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

2.2. Egquity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

3.3.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business.
line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

3.3.5 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

1. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finandial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
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The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company transfers the financial asset if, and only if, either:

i) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset,
or

ii} tt retains the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
i) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

ii) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset,

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and
has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

2. Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.3.6 Impairment of financial assets

1. Overview of the ECL principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL} model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk
exposure,

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
- Undrawn credit limits

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.
The ECL allowance is based on the credit 1osses expected to arise over the life of the asset {the lifetime

expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’.expected credit loss. Lifetime ECLs are the
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expectéd credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expécted life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. ' '

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis,
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company’s policy
for grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis is explained in Note 41.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument,

Based on the above, the Company categorises its foans & advances into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3
as described below by comparing the credit risk of the financial instrument as at the reporting date,
with its credit risk as at the date of initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-months ECL
All exposures that are not creditimpaired and where there has not been a significant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit
impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. Exposures with days past due {DPD) less than
or equal to 30 days are classified as stage 1.

For these assets, 12-month ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying
amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance).

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that are not credit impaired, are classified under this stage.

Exposures with DPD greater than 30 days but less than or equal to 89 days are classified as stage 2.
For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognized, but interest revenue is still calculated on the gross
carrying amount of the asset.

Stapge 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

Financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.

For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised on principal
outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD equal to or more than 90 days are classified as stage
3.
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2. The calculation of ECL

The Company calculates ECL based on a probability weighted approach to measure the expected cash
shortfalls. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only ﬁappen at a certain time over the assessed pefiod, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfofio. The concept of PD is further
explained in Note 41: Risk Management.

Exposure at Default {EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a futufe default
date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, expected drawdowns, and accrued interest from missed payments. The concept
of EAD is further explained in Note 41: Risk Management.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It
is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The concept of LGD is further explained in Note 41:
Risk Management,

Undrawn Credit limits

When estimating ECL for undrawn Credit limits, the Company estimates the expected portion of the

credit card limits that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the expected
shortfalis in cash flows if the limit is drawn down.

Forward Looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there
is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set
by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology
to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Write-offs -

Company is following the write off policy to undertake annual NPAs. The accounts, which have been
classified as NPA for 180 days or more and for which no payment is received for one year, are written

off as Bad Debts.




Presentation of allowance for ECL in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the balance sheet as follows:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

b} Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, the company
presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a
deduction from the gross carr\fing amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance |
over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision;

3.4. De_termination of Fair Vall_.le

On initial recognition, alt the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent
measurement, the Company measures certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in
note 40} at fair value on each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

i} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
i) In-the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.
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Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs-that are used for valuation and are significant, -
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and vield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unocbservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

3.6 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash future, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Tangible Assets

Under the previous GAAP {Indian GAAP), all assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has considered
the carrying amount as per previous GAAP as deemed cost in accordance with ind AS 101 First Time
adoption.

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE are
initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price {including non-
refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade discounts and rebates), and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from
the balance sheet and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised. The expenditures that are incurred
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after the item of PPE has been put to use; such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in situations
where the said expenditure can be measured reliably and is probable that future economic benefits
associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate
asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis & written down value basis using the rates arrived
at based on the usefui lives estimated by the management.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Particulars Useful lives estimated by the | Method of Depreciation

Management (Same as specified

in Schedule Il of the Companies

Act, 2013)
EDC 5 years S5LM
Computer Hardware 3 years SLM
Computer Hardware SE 6 years SLM
Computer Software 5 years SLM
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years WDV
Vehicles B years WDV
Office Equipment 5 years WDV
Plant & Machinery 15 years SLM

Changes in 'the'ekpéctéd useful life are:accounted for by “changing thé amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. The
Company has considered the carrying amount as per previous GAAP as deemed cost in accordance
with tnd AS 101 First Time adoption.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The Costs of Intangible assets are amortized over the period of 5 years, on Straight Line Method

Intangible assets under development:

Projects under which intangible assets are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses.
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Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, an
estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset / cash generating unit (CGU) is made. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assetis considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit {CGU).

Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.

An asset or CGU whaose carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting
years may no longer exist or may have decreased.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
3.9 Leases (As a lessee}

tdentifying a lease

At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contain, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company assesses whether:

-The contract involves the use of an identified asset, this may be specified explicitly or implicitly.
-The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use, and

-The Company has right to direct the use of the asset.
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Recognition of right of use asset

The Company recognises a right of use asset at the lease commencement date of lease and comprises
of the initial lease liability amount, plus any indirect costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received. The Company has adopted approach 2B as per Ind AS 116
where the right to use asset is recognised at same value at which liability is recognised.

subsequent measurement of right of use asset

The right of use asset is subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of
the lease term, whichever is lesser. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurement of the lease liabiliﬁ,’.

Recognition of lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments net of cash lease
incentives that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent measurement of lease liability

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability using the incremental
borrowing rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.10 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as finance cost.
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A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liahility that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

Provision for Bonus points redemption

The Company has a reward point program which allows card members to earn points based on spends
through the cards that can be redeemed for cash. The liability for reward points outstanding as at the
year-end and expected to be redeemed in the future is estimated based on an actuarial valuation.

3.11 Inventories: Inventory, if any, is valued at cost (arrived on FIFO basis) or net realizable value,
whichever is lower.

The cost for inventory valuation includes the amount of tax or other such amount (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities such as Input Tax Credit} incurred to bring the
goods to the place of its location and condition as at the year end.

3.12 Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or an incurring expenses:
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax / value added taxes paid, except:

a) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable.

b) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recaverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

3.13 Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with ind AS 33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Difuted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.
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3.14 Contingencies and events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

Events occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet, which provide further evidence of conditions
that existed at the Balance Sheet date or that arose subsequently, are considered up to the date of
approval of accounts by the Board of Directors, where material.

3.15 Foreign currency transaction

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during the year are recoghised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denoted in foreign currencies as at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at the closing exchange rates. Resultant exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and related assets and liabilities are accordingly restated in the Balance
Sheet. Non-maonetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency at the Balance Sheet date are reported using exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

3.16 Statutory Reserve

tn accordance with section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company creates a reserve fund and
transfers therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
Statement of Profit and loss before any dividend is declared.

3.17 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised, and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

3.18 Critical judgements and key source of estimation

3.18.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:

3,18.1.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest {SPP(} and the business model test. The Company determines the business
model at a level that reflects how Company's financial assets are managed together to achieve a
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particular business ohjective, This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amo rtised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if itis not appropriate whether
there has been a change in business model and so a praspective change to the classification of those
assets.

3.18.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3,18.2.1 Effective Interest Rate {EIR) Method

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of toans taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee
income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument.

2.18.2.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

3.18.2.3 Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.
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When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of econamic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, '

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude on these
estimates. ' '

3.18.2.4 Leases- Estimating the incremental Borrowing Rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR thérefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the I1BR using observable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

3.18.2.5 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.18.2.6. Card life

Estimation of card life relies on behavioural life trend established basis past customer behaviour/
observed life cycle




BoB Financia! Solution Ltd

Notes to financial staterments for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

" {Figure in Rupees in millions, unless atherwise stated)

MNote 4: Cash and cash eqﬁivale_nts

As at

Particulars As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Cash on hand .02 0.02
Balances with bank* 605.95 158,82
Total 695.97 158.84

The Company has taken bank overdraft, however, the same is not considered as a part of cash and cash equivalent for cash flow statement.
*includes unspent amount of CSR of Rs. .01 mn {ying in current account.
The Company migrated to the new card management System (CCMS)"First vision” during the quarter ended.30th Sept 21. Subsequently all the

transaction processing for credit card business Is being routed through the new CCMS. As the impiementation of the said system is In process, Cash
and Cash Equivalents includes Rs 4.85 millicn {net) where the clearing is under progress.

Note 5: Bank bafance other than above

Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Deposit with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 0.12 -
12 months (lien marked)
Total 0.12 -

Nate 6: Trade Receivahles

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Receivable considered good

- Unsecured

To be realised wilhin fwelve months after reporting date: 202.67 309.32
To be realised after twelve months after reporting date: 35.77 54.59
Total 238,44 363.81
Trade receivables include unbilled revenue 100.72 79.69

As at 31st March 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6|6 months 1-2 23 More than |Totafl
months -1 year Years years 3 years
(I} Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 172.57 12.73 40.00 13.05 - 238.44
Total 172.57 i2.73 40.09 13.05 - 238.44

As at 3tst March 2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment
Less than 6|6 months 1-2 2-3 More than |Total
months -1 year Years years 3 years
() Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 312.12 36.94 14.18 0.67 - 363.91
Total 31212 36.94 14.18 0.67 - 363.91

Trade receivahle from related party

As at M March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Bank of Baroda
Subsidiary of Bank of Baroda

195,26

326.14

0.13

0.26

Trade receivables are non-inferest bearing and are generally on termns af 0 to 90 days.
Trade receivable includes majority receivables fram holding company {i.e. Bank of Baroda) and the Company do not perceive any

credit risk-on that

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.
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BoB Financial Sclution Ltd

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
(Figure'in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Loans and advances

As at As at
Loans 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
At Amortised Cost
A}
LOAN AND ADVANGCE
To be realised within twelve months after reporting 12,913.09 7,8901.15
date
To be realised after twelve menths after reporting 1,370.16 873.70
date
| Total (A) -Gross 14,283.24 B,774.85
LessImpairment loss allowance (1,828.74) (1,344.55)
Total (A) - Net 12,454.50 7,430.30
B)
(i) Secured by lien on Fixed Depaosits 173.44 247.96
(i} Unsecured . 14,109.80 8,526.89
Total (B) -Gross 14,283.24 8,774.85
Less:impairment [oss allowance {1,82874) (1,344.55)
Total {A) - Net 12,454.50 7,430,30
C) (i) Leans in India
(1) Pubtic Sector - -
(ii) Cthers 14,283.24 B,774.85
Total C) (i) -Gross 14,283.24 8,774.85
Less:impairment loss allowance {1,828.74} {1,344.55)
Total C} {i) - Net 12,454.50 7,430.30
Cj} (ii) Loans outside India
Total C) (i) -Gross - -
Less:impairment loss allowance - -
Total C) (ii) - Net - .
Total C) {i) +C) (ii} 12,454.50 7,430.30
D}
standard Advances 13,204.40 8,121.31
Less: Impairment loss allowance {918.20) {691.01)
Total 12,286.20 7,430.30
Sub- standard Advances 1,078.84 653.53
Less: impairment loss allowance (910.54) {6563.53)
Total 168.30 (0.00}
Total (D) Gross 14,283.24 8,774.84
Less: mpairment loss allowance {1,828.74) (1.344.54)
Total (D) Net 12,454.50 7,430.30

Following are the loans and advances given to directors, KMPs in the normal course of credit card operations.

Type of Borrower

31.03,2022

31.03.2021

Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the

Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the

outstanding nature of loans outstanding nature of loans
Promaoters - - - -
Directors 0.09 0.00 £.06 0.00
KMPs - 0.08 0.00 0.26 0.00
Related Parties 0.50 0.00 0.12 0.00
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BoB Financial Sclution i.td

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
(Figure in Rupees in miliions, unless otherwise stated)

Note B: Investments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2021

At Amortised cost
Investment
Total Gross {A)

(i) Investment ouside India
(i) Investment in. India

Total B- Total (A} to fally with (B}

Less:Allowance for Impairment loss {C) -

Total Net {D})

During the yeaf ending 31st March, 2022 the Company has purchased and sold units of Mutuat funds, the

details of which are as follows.

Fund Mame Units Purchased Sales amount
amount

Barcda liguid fund 958,69,425.3920 11,449.80 11,454.73

Aditya Birla Sun Life ovemight fund 14,24,461.1820 919.95 §20.36

Tofal 1,12,93,886.5740 12,369.75 12,375.09

During the year ending 31st March, 2021 the Company has purchased and sold units of Mutuat funds, the

- details of which are as follows,

Fund Name Units Purchased Sales amount
amount

Baroda overnight ptant 55,66,009.5940 5,849.70 5,951.89

Baroda liquid fund 8,46,939.1770 1,499.93 1,502.21

Total 62,12,948.7710 7,448 83 7,454.10
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd

MNates to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

(Figure in Rupees in millions, uniess otherwise stafed)

Note 8: Other financial assets |

Parliculars As at As af

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
To be realised within fwelve months after reporting
dafe: '
Unsecured considered good
Advance to employees 1.32 1.46
Advance Others 0.29 0.18
Advance towards Gratuity fund 0.08 0.13
Unrecovered Merchant Payment 33.37 2411
Recoverable towards Sefflement Agency 92.00 79,12
Recoverable from Oil Marketing Company 317 4.91
Receivable from Government - 10.58
Insurance receivable 0.02 0,02
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit 0.00 -
Chargeback recoverable 5.94 7.60

Less: Impairment aliowance (0.18)] {1.13}
To be realised after twelve months after reparting
date: ’
Unsecured considered good
Security deposits 12.97 12.66
Tofal 150.60 130.63
Note 18: Deferred Tax Assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Deferred tax assels 494,14 441.86
Total 494.14 441.86

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and charges recorded in the income tax expenses for ihe year

ended 315t March 2022,
. Recognised in Recognised in Closing
apening balance
o profit and [oss other halance as on
Deferred tax assets (liabilities} as on .
{(expense)/ compreheansive 31st March
3st March 2021 .
Income income 2022

Property plant and equipment 86.22 (10.33) 73.80
Provision for expenses 31.04 13.27 {1.02) 43.29
ECL provision 368.17 66.43 434.60
Deferred revenue 18.22 {3.34) 14.88
Amortisation of Card acquisition cost (63.28) {13.82) (77.20)
Processing fees 1.74 1.13 2.87
Debt issue expenses {0.26) 0.06 {0.20)
Total 441.86 53.30 {1.02) 494 .14

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheel and charges recorded in the income tax expenses for the year

ended 31st March 2021.

opening balance Recognised in Recognised in Closing
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) as an profit and loss other . balance as on

st March 2020 {expense)! comprehen5|ve st March

i Income income 2021

Property plant and equipment 70.14 16.09 - 86.22
Provision for expenses 22,15 9,48 {0.57) 31.04
ECL provision 182.84 185.33 - 368,17
Deferred revenue 7.03 11,19 - 18.22
Amortisation of Card acquisition cost (44.29) {18.99) - {63.28)
Processing fees (.55 118 - 1.74
Debt issue expenses - (0.28) - (0.25)
Total 238.43 204.00 {0.57) a41.86
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd

Notes to financial staiements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated
g p

Note 12: Right-of-lise assets

Particulars Right-of-use
Building
Gross block
Al April 01, 2020 105.35
Addilions 93,51
Disposals {110,18)
At March 31, 2021 BB.68
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2022 B3.68
Depreciation and impairment:
At April 01, 2020 38.90
Depreciation charge for the year 28.47
Disposals {80.98}
At March 31, 2021 7.39
Depreciation charge for the year 17.74
Disposals -
At March 31, 2022 2513
et boolk value:
At March 31, 2021 81.29
At March 31, 2022 63.55
Note 13: Intangible assets under development
Particulars As af As at

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Capital work in progress 0.63 19.91
Total 0.63 19.91

-(a} For Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development as on 31st March Amount in CWIP for a pericd of
2022 Less than 1 year |1-2 years 2-3 Moce than 3 Total
years years
Projects in progress 063 - - 0.63
Projects femporarily suspended - - - -
Infangible assets under development as on 31st March Amount in CWIP far a period of
2021 Less than 1 year |[1-2years 2-3 More than 3 Tetal
years years
Projects in progress 18.91 - - 19.91
Projects lemporarily suspended - - - -
{b) For Intzngible assets under development, whose comgpletion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to ifs original plan.
Intangible assets under development as on 31st March 2022 To be completed in
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
yeat years
Project 1 - - -
Project 2 - - -
Intangible assets under development as on 31st March 2621 To be completed in
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3
year years
Project 1 - - - -
Project 2 - - -
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Note 14: QOther intangible assets

31 March 2022

Particulars Computer
Software
Gross block
Deemed cost as at April 01, 2020 13.61
" |Additions 24.22
Disposals {3.71)
At March 31, 2021 3412
Additions 157.82
Disposals -
Af March 31, 2022 19174
Accumulative amortisation and impairment:
At April 01, 2020 205
Amartisation for the year 2.86
Disposals (1.05)
At March 314, 2021 4,76
Amortisation for the year 26.90
Disposals -
At March 31, 2022 31.65
Net book value!
At March 31, 2021 29,37
At tMdarch 31, 2022 160.09
Note 15: Other non-financial assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021

To be realised within twelve months after reporting date:

Unsecured considered good

Goods 8 service {ax credit {input) receivable
Unamoriised card acquisifion cost (contract asset)
Advance to Vendor

Deferred lease expenses
Prepaid expenses

To be realised after twelve months after reporting date:

Unsecured considered good

Unamorlised card acquisilion cost (contracl assef)

Advance tax (net of Provisions for taxation and tax deducted
at source)

Prepaid expenses

Total

207.72 148.59
90.45 58.62
527 2,88
2.00 2,26
18.66 13.93
216.27 158.68
Ji9.68 281.71
6.68 1.73
867.73 678.40
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Nofc 16: Payables

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 31 March

) 2022 2021
Payable within twelve months after reporting date:
Trade payables
(1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15.45 1.69
{ii} total outst_andlng dues of creditors other than micre enlerprises and 139.07 70.64
small enterprises
Total 154.52

As al 31si March 2022

72.23

Particulars Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than1  |1-2 23 More than 3 |Total
_ . year Years . years years
(I} Undispuicd dues MSME 15.45 - - - 15.45
{ity Undisputed dues- Others 132.57 370 2.80 - 139.07
Total 148.02 3.70 2.80 - 154.52

As al 31st March 2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan1 {1-2 2-3 Mcre than 3 Tofal
year Years years years
() Undispuled dues MSME 1.69 . - By 1.69
(i) Undisputed dues- Others 67.60 2.94 - - 70.54
Total 69.29 294 - - 72.23
Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
1y Principal amount remaining unpaid 15.45 1.69
. |iiy Interest due thereon remaining unpaid Nil il
it} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Seclion 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2008, along with the amount of . .
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day Nil Nl
iv) Interest due and payabie for the period of delay in making payment
{which have been pald bul beyond the appointed day during the periad} but . )
without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium il Nil
Enterprises Act, 2006
v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid il Nit
vi} Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such dale when the interest dues as above are aclually paid to the small Nil Nil

enterprises

The above information has been compiled in respect of parlies to the extent to which they could be idenlifed as Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises ,

on the basis of infarmation available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Note 17: Debt securities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 31 March
2022 2021

At Amortised Cost
Unsecured;
- To be settled within twelve months after reporting date:
Liability component of compound financial instruments:

Commercial paper 495,82 3.565.17
- To be setiled after twelve months after reporting date;
Liabitity component of compound financial instruments:

Debentures 498.20 4949.11
Total (A) 995,02 4,064.28
Debt securities in India 985.02 4,064.28
Debt securities outside India - -
Total (B} to tally with (A} 935.02 4,064.28
Particulars of Unsecured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
Particulars As at As at

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Unsecured Redeemakble Non Canvertible Debentures
7.65 % Unsecured Tier [l NCD of Rs.1 0,?0,000 each INEO27208011 500.00 500.00
{Redeemable at par in March'2031) '
Total 500.00 500.00
Less; Unamaottized Expense 0.80 0.89
Total 49920 49911
Particulars of Commercial paper
Particulars Rate of Date of As at As at
interest maturity 31 March 31 March
2022 2021

Commerclal Papers
Commercial Paper - INEQ27214100 3.80 28-05-2021 - 1,250.00
Commercial Paper - INEQ27214118 378 29-06-2021 - 1,250.00
Commercial Paper - INE027214050 6.15 02-07-2021 - 1,100.00
Commercial Paper - INE027214209 4.40 10-08-2022 500.00 -
Total 500.00 3,600.00
Less: Unamortized discount 4.18 34.83
Total 495.82 356517
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Motes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
(Figure in Rupees in milfions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18: Borrowings other than debt sec_urities & Leased liahilities

As at As at

jicul
Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

At Amortised Cost

Unsecured

- To be settled within twelve months after repading date:

{(a) Finance lease obligations 17.09 14.68

{b)Loan repayable on demand
Working capilal loan

(ijfrom banks 6,600.00 1,600.00
{fi) frem banks (Refated Parly) - 903.45
- To be setlled after twelve months after reporling date:
{a) Finance lease obligations 49.43 66.52
Secured

- To be setiled within twelve months afler reporling date:
(a)Loans from relaled parties:

Working capital loan* ' 3,450.05 e
10,116.57 2,584.65
Borrowings in India 10,116.57 2,584.65
Total (B) to tally with (A) 10,116.57 ' 2,584.65

The Company has been regular with repayment of inlerest and principat on all its borrowings and there Is no overdue on the reporting date.

* First paripasu charge by way of hypothecation on bomower's credit card standard receivable {present and future) and other cument assets with an Asset cover
of 1.1 times,

* FD of Rs. 0.12 mn Is lien marked against the overdraft.

Terms of repayment:
Term loans from Banks :

Lender Name Socured / Tenure (months) As at As at
Unsecured 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
HOFC Bank . { Unsecured 6 months 2,500.00
HDFC Bank Unsecured 9 months 500,00 -
HOFC Bank Unsecured 12 months 1,000.00 1,000.00
Hong Kong & shanghai Banking Corporation Unsecured 12 months 2,600.00 600.00
Bank of Baroda Secured 3 months 2,500.00 -
Bank of Baroda . Secured 12 menths 950.05 903,45
Total Borrowings other than debt securities, above 10,060.05 2,503.45

et Debt Reconciliation for the year ended 31st March 2022

Non Cash changes

Particulars Cpening halance Cash flow Interest f Closing balance
e others
amorisation
Commercial papet 3,565.17 {3,100.00} 30.65 - 49582
Debenture 4589.11 0.08 - 499.20
warking capital loan 2,503.45 7,546.59 - - 10,050.05
leased liabililics 81.20 - 517 {19.85} 66.52
Total 6,648.93 4,446.59 35.91 {19.85) 11,111.58

Net Debt Reconciliation for the year ended 31st March 2021

Non Cash changes

Particulars Qpening bal Cash flow Interest ! Closing balance
. othears
amortisation
Commercial paper - 3,565.17 - - 3,665.17
Debenture - 499.11 | - - - 49911
working capital loan 2,735.67 {232.11) - - 2,503.45
leased lizbilities 657.97 - 7.34 5.8¢ 81.20
Totat 2,603.53 3,832.17 7.34 5.82 5,648.83
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Note 19: Other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
3 March 2021

Liabilitles to be seftled within twelve months after reporting date

Advance from customers 165.71 104.47
Merchant payment on hold 21.52 20.79
Other Payable 12.52 12.15
Charge back hold 8.51 11.07
Payable to employees 4,12 0.25
Credit Batance In Cancelled Cards 2.64 1.62
Onus Chargeback 261 6.72
Insurance Claim Payable - 0.28
Liahilities to be settled after twelve months after reporting date

Refundable Deposit 6.01 6.30
Merchant payment an hold 7.17 6.93
Total 230.81 170.58
Note 20: Provisions

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Provision for emiployee benefits
Liabilities to he seftled within twelve months after reporting date

Staff incentive 2475 0.44
Provision for compensaled absences 378 -
Liabilities to he setted after twelve months after reporting date
Provision for compensated absences 7.48 17.67
Others
Lizbilities to be settled within twelve months after reporting date
Provision For Expenses 435.61 336.92
Provisian for Reward Poinl Expenses 145.04 81.33
Provision for CSR activities - 1.91
Total 666,67 438.27
Hote 21: Dther Non-financial liabilities

Parficulars As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Liabilities to be settied within twelve months after reporting date
Statutory dues payable

Uneamed Income

Contract liability {deferment of annual fees)

Total

153.11 166.54.
- 1.86
59.11 62.57
212,22 230.97
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

_Note 22: Equity Share Capital

The reconciliation of equity shares cutstanding at the béginning and at the end of the period

Authorised Share capital

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

40,00,00,000 {P.Y. 40,00,00,000) Equily Shares of Rs 10/~ Each 4,000.00 4,000.00
4,000.00 4,00£.00
Issued and fully paid up
27.50,00,000 (P.Y.17,50,00,000) Equily Shares of Rs 10/~ each fully paid up 2,750.00 1,750.00
Total 2,750.00 1,750.00
Recenciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Number of Rs. In millien Number of Rs. In
shares shares million
Al the beginning of the reperting year 17,50,00,000 1,750.00 { 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Issued during the year 10.00,00,000 1,000,00 - .
Al the close of the reporting year 27,50,00,000 2,750,090 | 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Details of shareholders holding of Promotors
31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2021
Promotors name Number in % holding in % holding Number In % holding in | % holding
million the equity changed million the equity changed
: share during the year ) share during the
Bank of Baroda 275 108.00% Nil 175 100.00%1 Nil
Equity Shares

The Company has only ane class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share, Each helder of equity shares s entilled {o one vote per share. The
dividend, if any, is proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject {o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting. In the event
of liguidation of Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assels of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion o the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity Shares
Particulars 31 Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Number in % holding in Numberin | % holding In the
million the class millian class
Bank of Baroda 275 100.00% 175 100.00%

The Bank hofds 27,48,99,300 shares in ils own name and the balance shares through its -7- nominee shareholders holding 100 shares each,

Mate 23: Other Equity

Parficulars As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934 35217 35217
Retained Earning {292.69) (191,66}
Total 59.48 160.51
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Statutory Retalned Total Statutory Retained Total
Reserves Earnings Reserves Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the vear 52,17 {191.66) 160.51 352.47 (87.04) 25514
Tolal Comprehensive Income for the year - 3126 3.26 R 1.39 139
Transfer to relained eamings - {104.29) (104,29} - {96.01) {86.01)
Balance at the end of the year 35217 {292.69) 59.48 35217 {191.66) 160.51

Nature and purpose-of Reserves
Statutory reserve

The Company created a reserve pursuanl io section 45 IC the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by transferring amount not less than twenly per cent of its net
profit every year as disclosed in the Stalement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend. However due to loss in lhe current year, the Company have nol
appropriale towards the stalutory reserve. (previous year: Nif)
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Note 24: Interest income

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on Loans

Interest on credit card loans 1,853.58 1,094.20
Other interest 0.51 0.42
Total 1,854.09 1,094.62

Note 25: Income from fees and services

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Income frem Fees 1,694.56 989.41
[ncome frem Merchant Operations 1,268.75 1,237.36
Income from Debit Card Operations - 64.81
Total 2,963.31 2,291.58

Note 26: Qther income

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Income from mutual fund 5.34 4 .47
Interest on Fixed Deposit 0.00 -
Liability no longer required written back 10.71 108.82
Reversal of Provision for loss due to fraud 0.79 2.33
Profit on derecognition of lease assets - 5.56
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.06 0.77
Miscellaneous income 0.39 0.15
Bad Debis Recovered 21.86 11.71
Balance written back 1.37 -

Total 40.52 133.82

Note 27: Finance Cost

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

On Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings:

Interest on borrowings from banks: 279.87 180.50
Interest on lease liability 517 7.34
Interest on Commercial Paper and Bonds 118.00 86.55
Interest on Debentures 38.15 2.41
Total 441.19 279.80
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Note 28: Impairment.on ﬁlnaﬁcial instruments

Particulars

March 31, 2022

- March 31, 2021

On Financial instruments measured at Amortised Cost

(i) Loans 484.19 672.31
(i) Others receivable (0.97) (10.51)
(i} Bad debts written off 54562 174.86
(iv) Balance written off - 16,17
Total 1,028.84 852.83

Note 29: Employee benefit expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2022

. Barch 31, 2021

Salaries and wages 516.48 537.32
Contribution to provident and other funds 38.07 39,39
Staff welfare expenses 10.28 8.28
Toftal 564.83 585.00

Note 30: Operating and Other expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interchange fees 463.53 361.02
Business Prometion expenses 452.45 239.48
Bonus Point expenses 323.91 139.76
Scheme charges 326.59 266.97
Recovery Agent Charges 293,69 91.73
Wages & Salaries to Substaff -Contractor 258.58 378.92
Software/ L.T. Expenses 184.97 57.50
EEC Processing Charges 99.45 124.42
Royality paid to BOB, 75.27 -
Communication Expenses 77.96 48.53
Legal and Professional 23.90 19.87
Card Verification Charges 58.14 37.54
Card issuance cost 37.05 23.79
‘|Postage & Courier 29.82 20.76
Bank Charges 24.19 26.07
Rent 19.60 35.18
Other Administrative Expenses 29.67 12.14
Operating cost towards one card 13.97 -
Data Processing Charges 11.50 5.71
Repairs & Maintenance 10.40 5.97
Insurance Expenses 10.61 10.91
Travelling Expenses 9.76 10,06
Printing & Stationery 9.14 7.39
GPRS Conneclivity Charges (POS} 9.16 16.58
Electricity Expenses 5.23 4,58
Consumption of Credit Card Plastic 5.24 3.73
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss 2.61 0.59
Share Issue Expenses - 10.87
Fixed Asset Writlten Off 077 2.74
Advertisement Expenses 072 0.27
Auditor remuneration:
- as auditor 0.78 0.79
- fax audit fees 0.18 0.18
- for certification 0.76 0.40
Director's sitiing fees 0.52 0.39
Consumption of Debit Card Plastic - 18.76
Debit card Operation expenses - 16.05
Total 2,870.12 2,000.63
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022 -
(Figure in Rugpees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31: Income tax

The components of income tax expense for the yéar ended March 31, 2022 and.year ended March 31, 2021 are:

Profit or loss section

March 31, 2022

Nizrch 31, 2021

Current income tax:

Income tax - Current year aB8.07 74,68
Deferrad lax- Current year {53.37) {204.00)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 44.70 {129.32}

Other Comprehensive Income section

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Deferrad tax expense recognised in Other comprehensive income

{1.08)

(6.57)

Income tax expense reported in the Other Comprehensive section

(1.09)

{0.57)

Reéanciliaﬁon of tax expense and the'accouﬁting profit

March 31; 2022

March 31, 2021

Profit/{loss} before tax from a continuing operations {H9.59} {225.34)
Income tax rate as on Mar 31, 2022 25.97% 29.12%
Income fax expenses {15.00} (65.61)
Tax effect of:

Cthers adjustments 113.07 14025
deferred tax on timing difference {53.37) {204.00)
Income tax expense recognlsed in the statement of profit and loss 44.70 {129.32)

* During the financial year, Company have opled for taxation regime under seclion 115BAA under Income tax.

Note 32: Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year afiributable to equity holders of Company by

the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit aliributable o equity holders of Company (after adjusling for interest on the
convertible preference shares and inlerest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of fax} by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the

conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.,

Particulars

‘March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Following refiects the profit and share data used in EFS computations:
Basicf Dituted

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS 25,2534, 247 17,50,00,000
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS {104.29) {96.01)
Basic eamning per share {in Rs.) {0.41} {0.55)
Diluted

Weighled average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 25,25,34,247 17,50,00,000
Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS {104.29) {96.01)
Diluted earning per share {in Rs.} {0.41) {0.55})
Nominal / Face Value of equity shares {In Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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Note 33: Retirement benefit plan

i} Defined contribution pfan ' ) B i . . .
The:Company makes Contributicn which ars defined contribullons plans, for qualifying employees. Under, tHe schemes, the
company fs required to contribute a specified percenlage of the payroll cosls to fund the benefits, The contribulions payable o
these plans by the Company are at rales spacified in lhe rules of scheme.

Churing the year the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Slatement of profit and loss:

Farticulars Year ended Year ended
3 March 2022 | M March 2021
Employers' Contribution ta Employes's Provident Fund’ 27.668 29.81
Employee State Insurance Corporations (ESIC) 0,30 0.vo
Contribution lo National Pension Scheme 293 227
Labour Weifare Fund 0.02 0.02
Total 30.90 32.80

T provident fund is a defined contrbution plan. The contribation towards providend fund has been deposited with Regional

Provident Fund Commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

i} Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefil gratuity plan (unfunded), The company's defined benaht gratuity plan is a final salary plan
for employees, which requires contributions to be made 1o a separately administered fund, The gratuity plan is governed by
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the acl, employee who has completed five years of sarvice. is entitled o specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depands on the member's lengthrof service and last drawn salary,

Through its defined benel plans the Company is exposed to a number of fsks, the most significant of which are detailed

betow:

a} Change in hond ylelds -
A decrease in govemnment bond yields will increase plan liabifities.

b} inflalion risk -

The present value of some of the defined bensfil plan obligations are calculated with reference 1o the future salares of plan

parlicipants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan parlicipants will increase the plan's liability.

) Life expectancy -

The present value of defined benefit plan obligalion fs calcufated by reference lo the best estimate of the mortality of plan
paiticipants, bolh during and after the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan padicipants will increase he

plam’s Gablity.

The following tables summarise the companents of net benefit expense recognised in the stalement of profit or loss and the

funded slatus and amounts racognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

Particutars A5 at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2621
Change in benefit obligations
Present value of benefit obligation al the beginning of the year 14.32 35,93
Interest on defined benefil obligafion 2,49 241
Cument Service cost V.41 G.79
Liakility Transferred InfAcquisilion - -
{Benefit Paid From the Fund) {0.42} -
Acluarial {Galns) on Qbligatians - Due to Change in Demographic - -
Assumptions
Acluavial (Gains} on Qbligatlons - Due to Change in Financial {4.06} 2.33
Assumplions
Acluarial Losses an Obligations - Ouc to Experience (3.03} {1.84)
Liabliity at the end of the year 49.70 44.32
Tahte Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Particulars As al As at
March 31, 2022 | March 314, 2021
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of tha Period 44,45 873
Interest income 272 2.30
Coenlributions by the Employer 278 4.96
Benefit Paid Fror the Fund {0.42) -
Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income 0.26 045
Fair Vatug of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 49.79 44.45
Amount recognized in the Batance Sheet
Particiiars As at As at
: March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Present value of unfunded defined benefil ochligation 49,70 44.32
Amount not recognized duc {o asset limit {(49.79) (44.45)
Net defined benefit liability / (asset) recognized in balaace sheet {0.08) 0.43
Cuwrent {0.08} (0.13)
Non-currenl - -
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Expenses recogniied ini the Staternent of Profit and‘Loss '

Particufars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Currenl service cost 7.41 6.79

{nterest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) {0.23} [0.20)

Tota{ expense chatged to profit and loss account 7.18 6.59

Expenses recognized In the Other comprehensive income {OCH)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 3, 2021

Openlng amount recagnized in OC| oulside profil and loss acsount
Remeasurements during lhe pericd due o

Changes in financial assumptions {1.06) 0.33

Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Relum on plan assels excluding amounts included in inleresl income {0.26) (0.45)

Exparience adjustments {3.03 {1.84)
Closing ameunt recognized in OCI cutside profit and {uss account (4.35) {1.96}

The acluarial assumplions used 1o delerming benefit ohligations as al March 31, 2022 and March 21, 2021 are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Discount Rate &.50% p.a. 6.05% p.a,

Expected retum on plan assets 6.50% p.a, 6.05% p.a.

Retirement Age {years): 60 years G0 years

MMortality 1ables 2012-14 2012-14

withdrawal rates per annum

25 & below 18% 18%

2510 35 18% 18%

45 18% 18%

45t0 55 18% 18%

55 ang above 18% 16%

Salary escalalion rate 8.00% p.a for 8.00% p.a for

next 1 years & next 1 years &
6.00% p.a 6.00% p.a
thereafter thereafler

Balance sheet reconciliation

Partlcufars Az at As at
fMarch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Openlng net liability (0,13} 0.20

Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 7.18 6.59

Expenses recognized in OCI (4.35) {1.66)

Employer's Cantributicn (2.78) {4.96)

Met llability recognfzed in the Batance Sheet (0.08} {0.13)

Cash Flow Projection

Expected cash flow profiie of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based an past service of

the employees as at the valuation date

Farticulars A5 at As at
Warch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Expedled banefils for year 1 7.92 6.44
Expedled benelils for year 2 7.30 505
Expecled benelils for year 3 7.28 587
Expecied benefils for year 4 6.76 5.85
Expecled benefils for year 5 B.25 5.45
Expecled beneflls for year 6 to 10 years cash flow 20,23 18.44
Sensitivity analysis
Particulars As at As al

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Projected benefit obligation on current assumpticns
Della effect of +0.5% changs In rate of discounting
Della effecl of -0.5% change in rate of discounting
Della effect of +0.5% change in rate of salary increase
Della effecl of -0,5% changs in rate of salary Increase

48.58
50.88
50.78
48.65

43,24 |

4545
45.36
43.27

Lo 64
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
(Figure in Rupees in millions, uniess othenwise stated)

Note 34: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

IM-Mar-21

Particulars 31-Mar-22
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After i2 Total
months months months months
Assefs
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 625.97 - 695.97 158.84 - 158.84
Bank Balance other than above 0.12 - 0.12 - - -
Trade Receivables 202,67 3577 238.44 309.32 54.59 363.91
L.oans 12,012.92 441.58 12,454.50 7.22575 204,55 7.430.30
Other financial asselts 137.03 12.97 160.00 126.98 12.65 13863
Non-financial Assets ]
Inventory - 29.64 29,64 - 1.00 1.00
Deferred tax assets {net) - 494.14 494,14 - 441.86 441.86
Property, plant and equipmenl - 30.48 30.48 - 127.00 127.00
Right-of-use assets 17.73 45.82 63.55 17.73 63.56 81.29
Intangible assets under development 0.83 - 0.63 - 18.91 15.814
Other intangible asscts - 160.08 160.09 - 29.37 29.37
Other non financial assels 325.10 542.64 867.73 226.27 452,12 678.40
Yotal assets 13,392.16 1,793.12 15,185.29 8,064.89 1,406.60 9,471.49
Liahilities
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro 15.45 - 15,45 1.69 - 1.69
enterprises and small enterprises
{if) total outstanding dues of creditors other 139.07 - 139.07 70.54 - 70.54
than micre enterprises and small enterprises
Debli Securities 49582 499.20 995,02 3,565.17 49911 4,064.28
Borrowings (other than debt securilies) 10,067.13 49.43 10,116.57 1,614.68 868.97 2,584.65
Other Financial liabilitics 217.63 i3.18 230.81 157.35 13.23 170.58
MNon-financial Liabilities
Pravisions 659.18 7.49 §66.67 420.60 17.67 438.27
Other non-financial Gabilities 212.22 - 212.22 230.97 - 230.97
Total Liakilities 11,806.51 569.30 12,375.80 6,061.00 1,499.98 7,560.88
[Net ] 1,585.65| 1,223.83] 2,808.48 | 2,003.90| 93.38] 1,310.51
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Note 35: Revenue from Contract with Customer

The Company derives revenue from a variety of service contractl with customers which are governed by fND AS 115 such
as interchange income, annual fees, business development incentives and other fees elc. Below {able shows revenue

from contract with customer.

Revenue from services March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
Income from fees and services 2,963.31 2,291.58
Income from Consultancy 111.08 114.48
Business develapment incentives 27.53 28.19
Tota! 3,101.92 2,434.25

Disaggregation of Revenue:

The Company is engaged in the business af issuing credit cards to consumers in India. [t also provides support te Bank of
Baroda by camying oul its merchanl acquirng operaiions and manpower/consultancy services. The segment wise

hifurcation is provided In note ne 38,

Receivable from contract with custamers and contract balance

Parliculars March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
Trade receivables 238.44 363.91
Total 238.44 363.91
To be realised within twefve months after reporting date: 202.67 309.32
To be realised after bwelve months after reporiing date: 3577 54.58
Trade receivables Include unbifled revenue 100.72 79.69

Contract Cost

Cost of acquiring a custorner is the incremental cost of abtalning the contract wilh customer, which is recognised in the

profit and loss statement over the behavioural lile of the customer i.c. 5 years.

Particulars March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 217.20 152.08
Capltalised during the year 162.5Q 114.10
Amorlised durng the year 73,08 48.58
Closing balance 306.72 27.30
To be reallsed within twelve months after reporting date: 90.45 58.62
To be realised after tweive months afler reporting date: 216.27 158.68

The unamortised contract cost are disclosed in nole:15 to financial statements.

Contract liabilities

The company sell credit card to card holders, income eamed from customer as card fees Is recognised as revenue gver

the period of 12 months.

Parliculars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 62,57 24.16
Cagitalised during the year 119.05 40.68
Amortised during the year 122.51 717
Closing balance 59.11 62.57
To be realised wilhin twelve months afler reporling date: 5911 62.57
To be realised after twelve months afier reporling date: Nil Nil

The Contraci Liabifities are disclosed in note:19 to financial statements.

Note 36: Contingent liabilities, commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by varous parlies. The Company assesses
such ctaims and asserlions and monitors the legal environment on an engeing basis, with the assistance of external legal
counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a llabilily for any claims where a potential loss is probable and
capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if malerial. For potential fosses that are
considered possible, but not probabte, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record &
fiability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable, The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings
will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, z021 |

Income tax matters - appeals by Company
Claim filed against the Company In consumer courl

il
4.46

Nil
3.63

Tetal

4,46

3,62

A
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Note 3f: Related party disclosures
Ralationship

Halding Company

Subsidiary company

Other Group Campanles

Key Managament Personnet

Refaled Party ransactions durlng fhe years

Name of the party

Bank of Baroda

[ L

I} Subsidiaries of holding company

The Nainital Bank Limitad

Bank of Baroda (iKenya) Umited

Bank of Barada (Uganda) Limlted
Bank of Barmnda (Suyanal [nc

Bank of Baroda (UK) Limited

Bank of Baroda (Tanzanla) Limiled
Bank of Baroda (Trinidad & Tebapol Lid,
Bank of Baroda (Maw Zoaland) Lid.
Bank of Baroda (Botswana) Limited
BOB Caphtal Markets Limlied

Baroda Glebal Shared Senvices Lid
Baroda Asset Managemsnt Indla Limlled
Baroda Trustes India Private Limiled
Bargda Sun Tachnologles Ltd

BOE (U L.

M Assocaios company of holding company
Baroda Uttar Pradosh Gramin Bank
Baroda Ralasihan Ksheliya Gramin Bank
Baroda Gujaral Gramin Bank

Indo- Zambia Hank Lid {Lusaka)

Indla Intemational Bank Maiaysia Berad
i} Joint ventura of helding company-

Indla Firs, LK fnsumnca Company Limlled
India Infra debt Limlted

Mame Deslgnatlon

Shed Sanilv Chadha {Chalman)

Shri Vikramadltya S Khichl {(Nominee Clrector

Shd Purshotam {Non-axecullve Diector

s, Archana Pandey {Non-execuliva Diraclori{upte 30ih Cetober 20213
Shri Alul Malik : (Independen! Direcloriiuplo 30th Oclober 2021)

Mz, Kadagatoor Yenlateshmurthy Sheel {Non-axeculive Clraclor){vilh efect from 01s( December

2021)

Shil Sanjay iao (Addilional Direclordndependani} {with etfect frem 171h
January 2022

Shr Sharad Sadn {independerd Director)

Shri Shallendra Singh {Managlng Dlreclor & CEQY

Ms.Pooia Kamani {Chiaf Financtal Offlcac}

Ms. Deepashi Comalius [Company Sacretary)

Holding Company Assaciates f Enlerprises owned ar Key Management Fersonnel
slgnificantly Influenced by Key
Parlicutars Management Personnel
As at As 2l As at As at As at As al
March 31,2022 | March 34, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 29, 2021
Transactions o
1. MDR Subveniion a7 &1.74 - - -
2. Ravenus From Debit Card Operations - 55,80 - .31 -
3, Service Charges 474,72 411.52 - - -
4. Income from Consullancy service i11.08 11449 . - -
5. FOS Charges 14.42 68,06 - - -
6. Income from mulual fund investments - - 4.94 4,47 -
7. DST Expenses pald ! {recoverd) {0.28) - - -
8. Rent 172 15,64 . - -
4. Interesl on Short tam borawing s 23.70 11,85 - - -
18, Bank Charges 24 23,26 . - -
11, Insurance Expenses - - 135 0.27 -
12. Card [ssuance cost - - 6661 5221 B -
13. Olrector's - Employee Banefil Expenses - - - - 296 535
14, Dlreclor’s - sitiing fees - - - - o5 0,3%
15, Key Manageral Persons - Employee Benefl - - B - 6.53 Fal
Expanses
16, Visa Cther Charges 87,04 90.50 - - - -
17, Graluily premium paid - - 278 4.96 - -
18, Royafty for Logo 0.5 0.50 - - - -
18. Rovalily paid lo BOB. 7927 - - - - -
20, interast on Fixed Deposit Q.00 - - - - -
21. Dala validation charges o149 - - - - -
B. Balance Reteivabies at year end
1. Trads Recelvabies 195.26 2614 £.13 0.26 - -
2. Loan and advanece to customer - - 0.50 .12 0.18 0.32
3. Advance o vandor - - {0.82) 0.02 - -
4, Cash and cash cquivalants BB3.11 123.09 - - N -
5, Gralulty (1 Ha Insurance Fund) - - 49.719 44,45 - -
6. Intorest on FDR receivable .00 - - - - -
C, Balance Payables at year end
1. Borrowings {othar than debt secunlies) 3,450.05 002,45 - - - -
2. Trads Pavables - - 1532 15,90 - -
3. Provislons 21.72 9262 - 1257 - -
4. Other financial llakiiios 12.52 12.1% - - - -
Note:

a) Relaled parlies have been ldentifled on ha basis of the declaration recalved by the managemant and olher fecords avaitable,
b} Provislons for graluity, compensated absances and other long term service benelils are mada for the Company a3 a wihole and the amounts peraining 1o the key
managerial persennsl ace nol specifically identlied and henca are nol Included above.
&} The Company anters into lransactions, arrangements and agreements involving relaled parties in the ordinary course of business under the same commercial and maskel
{erms, Inlerest and commissten ralas thal apply to nen-related parlies, ’ )
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{Figufe in Rupees in millions, unlgss otherwise stated) |

Mote 38: Capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy
requirements of the local banking supervisar, Reserve Bank of India (RBI} of India. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored
using, among ofher measures, the regulations issued by RBI.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital sfructure and makes adjustments to #t according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment
to sharehelders, retum capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and
processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Regulatory capital

Commaon Equity Tier? (CET1) capital 1,614.58 1,150.70

Other Tier 2 capital instruments 673.32 611.44

Total capital 2,487.90 1,762.14

Risk weighted assets

iy CRAR (%) / CET1 capital ratio 17.86% 19.61%

i} CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 13.03% 12.80%

iy CRAR - Tier il Capital (%) 4.83% 6.80%

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained eamings including current year profit
less accrued dividends . Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS—-based results and reserves, as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India.
The other component of regulatary capital is other Tier 2 Capital Instruments.

Analytical Ratio

Ratio Mumerator Denominatar Current Previous Period % Reasan for variance {if ahove
Pericd Variance 25%)
Capital to risk-welghled 2,487.90 13,925.66 17.66% 19.61% -8.91%
Tier | CRAR 1,814.58 13,829.66 13.03% 12.80% 1.74%
Tier # CRAR 673.32 13,929.68 4.83% 6.80% -28.96%|Due to increase in RWA.
LCR Ratio* NA NA NA NA NA

* As per RB{ notification no RBI/2018-20/88/D0R.NBFC(PD) CC.Na. 102/03.10.001/2019-20 dtd 04th Nevember 2018, calculation and
maintance of LCR {Liquidity Coverage Ratio) is not applicable for non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of less than ¥ 5,000 crore.
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Note 39 : Events after reporting date

Further to the 3rd wave of COVID hiting the country in Decz1/Jan22, this did not have any materal Impac{ on the economic siluation of various customer segments. Our ’
collections efficiencies have improved to pre-pandemic levals and we do not forasee the impact of COVID in the coming months. Having said that, there are some states
having a rlse in COVID cases . Since this wave has not siill in buill in, Is too eady ta comment on its impact on Jife or livelihood, or our awn capabiities lo collect from
dellnguent popwation, we do not foresee the need to hold any incremental pravisions owing to COVID. Howaver the extent la which the COVID induced pandemic in future will
continug toimpact the Company’s results will depend on ongolng as well as fulure developmenls in this regard.

Nate 40: Segment repotiing
The Management has reviewed and reconsidered the requirsmenls of presenting segment information and accordingly identified Business segment as the Primary segment
for disclosure for the current year, The Campany operations are in India and hence there Is no segment reporting by geographical segment. Segment nformation has been
prepared in conformity with the Ind A8 108 on 'segment repoding’.

Business Segment Merchant Credit Card Debit Card Other Total
{acquiring) [issuing) ) :
Farticulars EY. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y.
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021.22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue 1,287.21 1,343.74 3,596,11 2,137.34 2.12 66.87 111.10 114.72 4,956.53 2.662.68
Resulf 207,63 377.35 {260.68) {631.99) 3.38 19,73 10,09 9,56 -59.60 -225.35
Unallocated Expense -
Operating Profit 207.63 377.35 (280.68) {631.99) 3.36 18.73 10.09 8.56 -59.60 -225,35
Interest Income + PPI ) ) - . B
Profit/{Loss) before 207,63 377.35 (280.68) {631.83) 3.36 16.73 10,09 9.56 -59.60 -225.35
Income Taxes 44.69 (129.34)
Extra-ordinary - -
et Profit before OCH {104.28) (96.01)
adjustment
Other Information )
Segment Assets 6523.55 440.88 13,285.86 7,523.60 9,15 | 20025 £86.48 306.08 13,995.05 B,870.79
Unaillocated Assets 1,190.24 600.70
Total Assets 15,185.29 9,471.49
Segment Liabiities $34.563 208.64 1,112.34 651,13 8.96 36,08 8.39 16,23 1,264.22 912.05
Unallocated Liahilities 13,921.07 8,559.44
Total Liabllities 15,185.29 5471.49
Capital Expenditure 36.75 8,54 28.73 33.64 0,38 - 656,48 42.56
Unaltocated -
DepreciationfAmortls 105.60 136.28 45.54 33.17 010 0.21 151.14 169.76
Unallocated -
Non cash expenses 6.44 §0.66 1.00 117 2.1 - - 5.55 491.B3
|Unallocalad -
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Note 41: Leases

The Company's lease asset class pﬁmarily consist of leases for office premise'sA Generail)}, the Company is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. The Company applies the shoriterm lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases (i.e., those [eases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do

not contain a purchase option).

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the vear:

Office premises

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Opening net carrying balance 81.28 65.44
Additions - 8a.67
Deletion - (44.36)
Depreciation (17.73) (28.47)

53.55 81.28

Closing net carrying balance

Set out below are the carrying amounts of [ease liabilities (included under Other financial Bability) and the movements

during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2022} March 31, 2021
Cpening Balance 81.20 67.97
Additions - 88.67
Deletions - (48.97)
Accretion of interest 5.17 7.34
Payments (19.85) {33.81}
Closing Balance 66.52 81.20

Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liability

The table below provides details regarding the confractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022 on

an undiscounted basis:

Pacticulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Not later than one year 17.09 14.68
later than one year not fater than five year 48,43 66.52
Latar than five year - -

Taotal undiscounted lease llabllities 66.52 §1.20

Amounts recagnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Depreciation expense
Depreciation on right of use assels
Other expenses

Shorl-term {ease rent expense
Finance cost

interest expense on lease fiability

17.74

18.60

517

28.47

35.18

7.34

yeléd
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Note 42: Fair value measurement

* The following table combines comparable information about :

- classes of financial instruments based on their financial nature and characteristics.
- carrying amount of financial instruments.

-The financial assets / liabilities are recorded at amortised cost
- All the financial assets and financial liabilities carrying value which is at amortised cost reflects fair value for these assets and liabilities.

Accounting classification and fair values,

As at March 31, 2022

Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars eveL | AMOTERdl tomal | Leveli|  Levell Level It Tota
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 695.27 695.57 - - - -
Barnk balance other than above - 012 0.12 - - - -
Receivables - 238.44 238.44 - - - “
Loans - 12,484,50 | 12,454.50 - - - -
Investments - - - - - -
Other financial assets - 150.00 150.00 - - - -
Total - 13,639.02 | 13,539.02 “ - - -
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables - 154,52 154.52 - - - -
IDebt securities - 995,02 99502 - - - -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - 10,116.57 | 10,116.57 - - - -
Other financial liabllities - 230.81 230.81 - - - -
Total - 11,496.92 1 11,496.92 - - - -
As at March 31, 2021
Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars FVTPL Amc"or:t“d Total | Levell|  Levelll Level Il Total
Financiat assocts
Cash and cash equivalents - 158.84 158.84 - - - -
Bank balance other than above - - - - - -
Trade receivables - 363N 363.91 - - - .
Loans - 7,430.30 7,430.30 - - - -
Investments - - - - - - -
Other financial assets - 139.63 139.63 - - - -
Taotal - §,092.68 8,092.68 - “ - -
Financial [iahilities
Trade Payables - 72.23 72.23 - - - -
Debt securities - 4,064.28 4,064 28 - - - -
Bomowings (olher than debi securities) - 2,684.65 2,584.,65 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 170.58 170,58 - - - -
Total - 6,891.74 6,891.74 - - - -

uq}é|
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Mote 43 Risk Managomend
Introdulctlon and Risk Profile . : Lo . : . . .
Company slarted of fis operations Tn 1934 wilh Credit card Issuance. This process of risk management is eeilleal to company's vision, and holds very high Importance In
the board govemance. The company is exposed Lo credil fsk, tiquidity risk and market risk, # s alsa subjec! lo various operaling and business rsks,

(a)Risk management structure .

Credlt risk [s lhe sk of Incurring financlal loss lo the company due lo Lhe defanlt of company's cuslomers in fulliing their contraciual obligallons to e company. The
credit risk management laam reports to Chief Risk Officer. The Chilef Risk Officer meets with the Audit and Risk Management Commiltee (ARMC) Independently every
quarter, Cradil sk afses mainly from toans and advances to retail cuslomers arising an accounl of facilitating credit card loans to customers

Credil risk managemeant approach

tanaging credit risk is the mosl Impertant part of tolal risk management exerclse, The Company's credit risk sul funclion headed by Chlef Risk Officer (CRQ) 1s
respensible far the key policies and processas for managing credlt sk, which include fermulaling eredil poficles and risk raling frameworks, quiding the Company's
appelile for credlt risk exposures, underaking independent revlews and objective assessmenl of credil risk, and monltoring perfarmance and managemsnt of portiolios.
The principal cblectives being maintainiag a strong cullura of responsitle fending across the Company, and rabust risk pelicles and control framewerks, Implementing
and conlinually re-evaluating our risk appetite and ensuring there is adequate moniloring of credit risks, their costs and thelr rilttgalion. The basic credit isk management
would caver wo key areas, vlz., {a) cuslomer seleclion & {b) customer management, These are govemed by Board Approved Cradit Palicy and Collectlons Poiley which
is reviewed on a regular basis. Organization has worked on strenglhening the credl declsion process wlih pre-qualificalion of the probable customers and sciznlific
selection based on ilabllity score model developed Intemally for appropriale customer selection and largeting. We have made mutifple inlerventions throughout Lthe year
ta strenglhen (he acquisilion quality. This has led lo Improvement [n approval rates In the current financlal year. The changes inglude discontinuatlon of programs,
revision In MCP, scorecard level changes ele. Credil Gimil assignment fs a function of inceme capaclty and risk assessment done for Ue Individual applicant. Risk
assessment is done based on intemal scorecards lhal ace based on applicant buragu history, application profile and demographic variables. Further, we assess the
cradit history indicalers as delemmined by independent 3rd party agencies — exlemal rating, bureau reporting, RE| nepative fist and assel classifcatlon lelers from
bankers.,

Fost acqulsilion portfolio definguency managemenl is carried oul lhrough Account Managemenl System, which includes:

~Froud dalection

<Porifolio quality revew

~Credit line increase

*Cross sell on cards

“Behaviour scorecard; and

«Collection score card etc,

The Company deploys right lechnalogy and resources 1o ensure the same, The Gompany has deployed practicesfanalytics such as lhe foliowing lo moniler and mitigale
eredlt Definquency meliics have been developed and conslanly evaluated & porfalle interventions jzading o better quaiily of lncoming new accounls Strong collection
practices driving consistenl mprovemenis in collection melrics &leveraging the lalest credit bureau informalion o Improve recovedes from older pools Slrong use of
analytlcs in measuring and maniloring credil sk ars used such as;Scorecards assessing defaull risk & payment propenstly Predictive Business Analytics Models

The key elements in calculation of ECL are as follows:

Stage 1 12-months ECL

All exposures thal are not credil impalred and where there has nol been a signlicanl increasa In credf iisk since initial recognftion or lhat have low credit risk al the
reporting date and thal are nol credil mpalred upon originalion are tlassified under (his stage. Exposures with days past due (DPD] less than or equal lo 30 days are
classlfied as stage 1,

For these assels, 12-month ECL is recognized and [nterest revenue {s calculated on the gross camying amount of Lhe assel (thal {5, withoul deduclion for eredit
allowance).

Slage 2; Lifetime ECL ~ nat credll Impaired
For credil exposures where there has been a significant increase in eredt risk sinee Iniial recognition hut that are not eredit impaired, are classified under {his slage,

Exposures wilh DPD grealer than 30 days bul less than or equal to B9 days are classified as slage 2, For hese assets, lifelima ECL. arc recognized, bulinlere sl revenue
{s still calculaled an the gross carrying amount of the assel,

Stage 3: Lifelime ECL ~ eredil impaired
Flnancial assel is assessed as credit mpaired when one or more evenls that have a detrimenlal impact onfhe estimaled future cash flows of that asset have occurmed.

For financial assels thal have bacome craditimpalred, a lifeime ECL is recognised on principal oulstanding as al perlod end. Exposures with DPD equal 1o or more than
a days are classified as stage 3.

The table below shows the credit qualily and the exposure to credit risk based on the year-end stago classificatlon. The amounts presented are gross of

Impzairment allowancas,
A3 an M st March 2022

Gross Expecied Net
Cateygory Assets calegocy Carrying Cradit Loss Carrying FD
Amount Amount
Slage 1 Credil card 12,644.85 B08.81 1183604 1G.70% o 14.49%
Staga 2 Credi card 539.55 109.29 45016 | 0.70 % to 43%
Stage 3 Credil card 107884 910,54 168.20 75% lo 100%
Total 14,283.24 1,028.74 12,454.50
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As on 31st March 2021

a fAssets Grass Expected Het
. ategory Carrying . Carrylng " PD
) ' S . calf.egory Amont Crec[ﬂ Loss Afnount ]
Stage 1 Credil card 7,693.81 596.97 7006585 | 0.50%to6.77%
Stage 2 Credil card 427.50 94.05 333,45 | 2.45% lo 28.56%
| Stage 3 Cradit card B553.53 553.53 - 100%
Tolal 8,774.84 1,344.55 ,430.30
An analysis of changes in the gross camying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to laans:
As at March 31, 2022
Risl. categorisation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tolal
internal rating grade
Performing
High grade {0 OPD} 12,644,823 - - 12,644 83
Standard grade (1-30 OPDY 0,03 ). - - 0.03
- |Bub-standard grade (31-60 DPD) - 544 63 - 54463
Past due bul nof Impaired {61-88 DP0Y) - 14,92 - 14.92
Nen- performing
ndividually Impaired (30 DPD and above, restruclured 15} - - 1,078.84 1,076.84
Total 12,644,85 558,55 1,078.64 14,282.24
-As at March 31, 2021
-|Risk cateqori Stage ¥ Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Perdorming
High grade {0 DPD} 7,083.51 - - 70835
Slandard grade {1-30 OPD) 610.31 - - 610.31
Sub-standard grade {21-60 DPO} - 221.75 - 22776
Past due but nol impalred (61-6% DPD} - 19974 - 198,74
Kon- pedoming
Individually impaired {80 DPO and above, restruclured assels) - - £53.53 §53.53
Total ¥ a33.81 427 .50 6521.52 8,774.84
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the comespanding ECL aliowances in relation Lo loan ,
As al March 31, 2022 )
Particufars Slage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Gross carrying amount as al March 34, 2021 7,693.81 427.50 653,53 B,774.84
New assets originaled or purchased* ¥,097.63 531.49 B78.7¢ B,568.91
Assels derecognised or repald (excluding wiile ofis} {1,718.51) {1.83} {510.40) {2,231.14}
Transfers 1o Slage 1 635.82 (631.80) (4.02) 0,00
Translers Lo Slage 2 {591.50) 582,19 - {9.31}
Translers lo Slage 3 (471.73) {408.,00) 584,57 {28522}
Changes 1o contraciual cash flows due 1o modifications net resulting in -
derecognltion
Amounts wrilten aff {0.21} - {534.63) {534 B4
Gross carrylng amount as at March 31, 2022 12,644 85 559.55 1,078.84 14,283.24
As al March 31, 2021
Panticulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tolal
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 4,015, BB 3p2.28 284.29 4,702.55
Mew assels onginaled or purchased* 4,183.15 222.50 (G547} 4,288.18
Assels derecagnlsed or repaid {excluding write ofls) {127.57) {2.28} {18.01} {148.85)
Transfers 1o Slage 1 123,580 {123.58} (0.03} 0,00
Transfers lo Slage 2 (168.12) 168.12 - -
Translers 1o Slage 3 (352,93 (216.55) 571.48 {0.00%
Changes Lo contractual cash Mows due o modlficalions not resulling in
derecognition
Amounts written off {0.21) - {174.83) {175.00)
Gross carrylng amount as al March 31, 2021 7,693.81 427 .50 65352 8,774.84
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Reconcillalion of ECL balance
_As at March 31, 2022

TPartlculars . Stage 1 Slage 2 Stage 3 Total
" |impaimment allowaance for loans to'customers as at March 31, 2021 5o6.97 94.05 651,51 1,344,55

Asscls derecognised or repald {165,234} {(1.8%) {510.40) (677.57)
New assets originated 404,60 58.23 679,40 1,142232
Reversal of COVID averlay -
Impact on yaar end ECL of Exposuras lransferred batween slages -
during Lhe year
Transfers lo Slage 1 51,23 (62.87) (4.02) {15.68)
Transfers lo Slage 2 #1.54 £7.13 B 1559
Transfers lo Slage 2 (36.90) (35.42) 625,66 554 04
Changes lo models and inputs used for ECL caleulations -
Amounls written off {0.21) - (534,63} {534.84)
Impalrment allowance for loans to customers-as at March 31, 2022 806.81 109,38 910.54 182874
As at March 31, 2021
Parlicuiars Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Total
Impaicment allowance for lbans to customers as at Aprill 1, 2020 300,12 BY.63 284.43 672.24
Assets derecognised or repald (6.99) {0.37) {18.01) {25.3%)
MNew assels originaled A2v.03 7276 493.55 B3 43
COMD overlay {10.72) (10.13) - (20,84}
Impacl en year end ECL of Exposures transferred belween stages -
during Lhe year
Transfers 1o Stage 1 2211 (22.60) {0.0% {0.00)
Transfers lo Slage 2 {9.57) 8.97 - -
Transfers lo Slage 3 {2513 {4313 668,26 {0.00)

- |Changes o models and npuls used (or ECL calculations -
Amounts wrillen off . {0.08} - {174.83) (174.81}
impaimment altowance for loans to customers as at March 31, 2021 595,97 9405 653.53 1,344.55
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(&) Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is the current and prospective risk arising oul of am inability to meel financial commilments as they fall due, through avaitable cash Rows or through the sale ‘of arssels at fair market
value, It Includss bolh, he risk of Unexpected increases in Lho cost of funding an assel portfolio at appropriale malurities and the risk of baing unable lo liquidate a positian n & limety manner at a
reasonable price.

Tha Company manages liquidity risk by malntaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and by having access ta funding thraugh an adequate amount of committed credil fines. Glven the need
lo fund diverse products, the Cempany maintaing Nexibiity In funding by mainlaining availabillty under commilted credlt llnes to meet obligations when duo. Managemenl regutarly menitors the
posillon of cash and cash equiveients ¥is-3-vis projoctions. Assessment of maturily profites of financial assels and financial liablllilas including deb! financing plans and maintenance of Bafanca
Sheel Hquidity ratios are considered while revlewing the llquldily position,

We manage liquidily risk in accordance with our Asset Liability Management Pollcy, This policy is framed as per the cument regulatary guidelines and is approved by the Beard of Direclars, The
Assat Liablilly M ment Policy is d pariodically te incorporate changes as required by regulatory stipulation or lo realign tha pollcy with changes in lhe econamic landscapes, The Assal
Liabllity Commitlae {ALCO) of ihe Company formulales and reviows slralegies and provides guidanca for managemenl of liguidily risk wilhin the framework taid out in the Assel Liabilly Management

Pelicy.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undlscounted cash flows of the Company's financlal asscts and

M March 20322

Particulars On demand| Uptoone COne manth to 2 2monthsto 3 |3 months to| 6 months 4 year to 3| 3 yoars to | more than § Total
Menth months months 6 months | to 1 year years 5 years yaars
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 695.97 £95.97
Bani balance olher than above 012 - - - - - - - - 012
Receivablas 26,23 asF7 3577 B3.45 21.48 3577 - - 238.44
Loans 7,108,687 2417.75 a51.96 993,32 540.00 273.23 168.25 12,454, 50
Investmanis - - - - - - - - - -
Cther linancial assets - 45.01 - - a1y B7.88 12.87 - - 150.00
Total undlscounted financlal assels 69508 7.182.10 2,453.51 987,75 1,079.94 549.31. 321,87 168,35 - 13,539.02
Flnancial liabitilies
Trade Payablas - 10817 0,40 15.45 - - - - - 154.52
Debl sccurities - - - 495.82 - - - - 499,20 435,02
Bomrowings (other than debt securitles} - 190.01 - 2,500.00 250000 | 4,100.00 760,04 - - 10,050.05
Other financial liabililes - 191.23 6.10 7.90 £.24 £.16 13,18 - - 230.81
Tolal undiscounted financial {labilitics - 483,40 701 3mMa1? 2506241 4,10615 Fri.z22 - 49920 11,430.40
31 March 2021
Particulars On domand|  Up to ane One menth to 2 2meonthsto 3 |3 months te| B months |1 yearto 3| 3 years to |mara than § Total
Month months months 6 months | to{ year years 5 years years
Financlal assats
Cash and cash aguivalznls 156,84 - - - - - - - - 156.84
Bank balanca sther than abuve - - - - - - - - - -
Receivablas - 40.03 54,59 £4.59 12737 32,75 54.59 - - 363.91
Loans - 4,225.36 1,490,895 583.95 583,48 33203 204.55 - - 7.430.30
Investmants - - - - - - - - - -
Other linancial assals - 39.57 - ~ 4.91 B2.49 12.66 - - 139.63
Total undiscounied financiat assols 158.84 17.51 1,545.54 648.54 T15.74 447,27 271.80 - - B,052 66
Financial Rabilitics
Trade Payablas - 2382 2420 16.13 BOF - - - - 7223
Debl securilles - - 1,242.68 1,238.60 1,083.80 - - - 49910 4,064.28
Borrowings {olher than dabl securities} - B05.55 400,00 - - 600.00 £07.90 - - 2,503.45
Other inancial liabililles - 125.99 .8 10.17 .94 g.10 13.22 - - 170.58
Total undizcoupnled financial labilitios - 955,36 1,674.04 1,764.90 1,089.91 606,10 ¥11.12 - 489,10 6,810,564
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8oh Financial Solullen Ltd
Motes to Tinancial statements for the year ended 3151 Mar 2022
{Figure in Rupees Tn millians, unfess othenwise staled)

{c) Maricet risl

The Company is expased lo inlerest rala risk as it has assels and liabilities based on Reating [nterest rates as well. The Company has an appreved Assets and Liabllity Management polley which
empawers the Assets and Liabliily Managemeni Committee {ALCO) lo assess the inleres! rale sk run by It and provide appropriats guidetines lo the Treasury to manage the risk, The ALCO
reviews Lhe interast risk an periodic basis and decidas on the assets profils and lhe appropriale finding mix, The ALCO reviews Lhe inlerast rale gap slatement and the [nizrest rate sensitivity
analysis,

Financial Assats As March 31, 2022 As March 31, 2021

Fixed- rate instrumenls 12,454,50 7,430.30
Finallng-rata instruments - -
tatal 12,454.50 7.4800,30
Fir faf Liahilitics As March 31, 2022 As March 21, 2021

Fixed- rate ingtruments 995,02 499.11
Floatingrate instruments 10,050.05. ) 516517
total 11,045.068 5,664.26

Fair value sensitivity analysls [or floafing- rate instruments.

The sensilivily analysis balow have been determined based on exposure to the inlersst rates for financial fnstrumenis at the end of Lhe reporting peried and Lhe sliputated change laking plzce at the
beginnlng af the financial year and held constant lhrough oul tha reporling period in case of instruments thal have floaling rates. I (ha inlerest rata had been 100 basis points higher or lower and all
olher variables wera constant, the Company prafit beforo (2x would have changed by (he follawing.

Parifculars As March 31, 2022 As March 31, 2021

10 bps higher| 500 bps lower 100 bps higher 100 bps
laveor
| Impact on prafil (81.24}) B1.24 {4510 4510

{d} Operational risk ) ) . )
Qperalional risk is Lhe risk of Joss resulting from inadequale or failod inlamal protesses, peopla and syslem oc from external events. The Company's (otuses on managemenl and conlrol of
operational risks thraugh a camprahensive system of intarnal controls and monitoring performance of each funclion against defined hrosholds.

Operational fisk management comprisas idantification and assessment of risk and controls, new products and process approval framewerl, measurement through operatlonal risk incidants,
moniloring through key risk indicalors and mitigation through procass and conirol enhancamant

Nate 44: Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income in Foreign currency

Income from credit card international operation, Currency conversion

charges, Business Developrment incentive income 23.61 29.72
Total 23.61 25.72
Expenditure in forelgn currency

scheme charges o - 309.84 261.95
Total 309.84 263.96
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45  Un-redeemed Reward Po!n:.s :

The Company has a reward point program which allows card members 1o earn peolnts based on spends Lhrough the cards that can be
redeemed for cash. In addition, Company has desigred a Reward & Recognilion program for sourcing credit card through branches
of the Holding Company. Accardingly Lhe eliglble empioyees of the Holding Cempany is rewarded with bonus points through a credil
in hefr card accounts, The Habllity for rewards points oulsianding as at Lhe year end and expecled to be redeemed in the fulure Is
accounted for an lhe basls of actuarial valuation.
Movement of provision for rewards poinis expenses,

Panticulars As AL 31.02,2022 As At 31.03.2021
Provigion at the beginning of the year 81.33 42,25
Add; Addilion made during the year 323.64 139.66
Less:- Amound used during the year 259.93 100.59
Less:- Unused amounls reversed durng the year - -
Amount at the snd of the year : . 145.04 8123

46  Inlerchange fees pald dunng the financlal year is net of Rs, 22,80 mn on account of the input tax credlt claim peratning to financial
year 2021-22 s under revlew wilh Bank of 8aroda,

47  Inrespect of accounts recelvables, the Comparny is reqularly generating and dispatching customer stalements on periodic Interval
wherever transaclions or outslanding are there. In case of dispules wilh regard la billing, there is a process of resolition and
adjustments are carried out on regular basfs. Mareover, In respect of accounts payable, lhe Company has a process of recaiving
regular balance confirmalion from ils vendors. The balances are reconciled wilh the balance confimation mceived and
discrepancies, il ary are accounled on reqular basis. For the year end balances of Aocounl Receivables, Account Payables and
Loans & Advances, lhe managernent ts of the apinlon Lhal adjusiments, if any required Lhrough the above-menlioned process, will nol
have any malerial impacl on lhe financials of the Company.

4B Previous Year's ligures have been regrouped, and! or rearanged and/ or reclassified wherever necessary lo make them comparable
with cumenl year's figures,

49  Schedule of Balance sheet of Systemnically Imporlant Mon-deposit laking Non-Banking Financial Company as required In temms of
Faragraph 19 of Syslemizally lmportanl Non-Deposit 1aking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions,
2016

Sr. NO, |Particulars Ags at 315t March 2022 As at 315t March 2021
Liabllites slde
Loans and Advances avalled by the MBFC's Amaount Amount overdue Amount Amount overdue
incluslve of interest accrued thereon bul not] outstanding outstanding
palc.
a) Debenlure: Secured Mt il il Wil
Ungsecurad 438,20 Nil 49411 Mil
{olher than falllng within lke meaning of public
deposil)

1 [5) Deferred credils Nif Nil il i
¢ Terms Loans NIl il Rl M
d} Inter-corporate loans & borowing NI Wil il N
&) Cormmerclal paper Mt Nil N N
fi Public Deposil
q} Dlher loans
-Cash Credil facility & Working capltal iem loan 10,116.57 Mil 2,584.65 Nit

2 Hreak-up of (1%} above {Qulstanding public
deposils inclusive of inlerest accrued thercon but
nol paid) :

a} In the form of Unsecured debentures NI il il 1]

b} In the form of partly secured debenlures fe, MIE Nil Nl Nil

debentures where there is a shortfal! In the value

of security

) Other public depasils Hil Wil it Nil

b} Linsccured Wil il Nit il
Parilcufars As at 31st March As at st March

Assets side 2022 2021

Brzak-up of Leans & Advances Including bllis rece{vables {other than those Amount Amount cutstanding

3 incluged in {4} below: ocutstanding
a) Secured 173.44 247,96
b} Unsecured 14,108.80 B,526.89
Break-up of Leased Assets & Stock en Hire and other assels counting lowards

a) Lesse assets Including tease rentals under sundry deblors:
1} Finance Lease Mil Mil
i} Qperating Lease NI Nil

4 b} Stock on hire Including hire charges under sundry debtors: )

It Assels on hire il NIl

ii} Hepossessed Assels Mil il
c) Olher loans counting lowards AFC activities

iy Loans where assels have been Wil Nil

il} Loans olher than {a} above Nit Nil
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As at st March | As at 2istMarch

Break-up of [nvestments . ’ .
2022 2021
Current Investment
Cuoted
I} Shares : Equity . Mil il
: Preference Nil Nl
iij Debentures and bonds Nl ull]
ill) Unid of mutual funds il I
iv) Govemmenl securilies il NIl
v} others {please spacily} Ni Mil
Unquoted
) Shares : Equlty il Hil
: Prelerence Nil Nil
i) Debentures and bonds I il Nil
fil} Unit-of mutual funds : ' . Nif Ml
|1} Government securities il il
v} others {ploase specify) M Ml
Long Term Investment
Queted
i} Shares ; Equity . il il
“: Preference | i ) Nil . Nif
| __li} Debenlures and bonds : Nil Mil
1ily Unit of muluaf funds il NI
Iv) Govemment securities Nil Nil
¥) others {please apecify) Hil il
Unguoted
i) Shares ; Equily Mil il
: Preference | . ) Nif Nl
li) Debenlures and tonds it it
iy Unil of mutual funds N il
) Government securities Mil Nt
v} others {please specify) il NY
Borower group-wise classificatlon of assels financed as In (2} and (3} above:
Category As at 315t March 2022 As at 31st March 2029
Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
1} Relaled parlies
Subsidiarles il bl il NIl
) Companies In the same group Nil 0,50 it .12
ity Olher retated pary il it Nil NH
2y Otherthan related parlles -, 17344 . 14,108,217 247.96 8,626.77

lInvestor group-wise classification of ali Investments {current and fong term) In share and securities [both quoted and
unguoted)

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Market value/ | Book value {(Net of Markat valuef Book value [Net of
Breakup or provislon) Breakup or fair provision)
Category fair value or valuo or NAV
NAY

1} Related parlles

1) Subsidiaries Mt Nil il NIE

i} Companies in the same gioup Mil Nl Ml Mt

fily Oher relaled parly NI il [l NI
23 Cither than relaled parlies NIl i NIl Nil
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Other information :
Partlcufars 31st March 2022 315t March 2021
Grogs Mon-pedomming Assets
i) Related Paries NIt il
8 i} Other than retated parlies 1,07€.84 653.53
Net Non-performing Assets {nel of provision made) :
i} Relaled Parties xlll il
i1y Gther Lhan relaled parties it il
Assels acquired on salislaction of Debl Wil Wil
50  Disclosure of Reslructured Accounts | Mot applicable

51

Assets classilcation as per BBl norms

Assets Gross carrytng . loss allowances Met carrying amount [Provision Difference
ciasslfication {amount as per Ind {{provislons) as requlred as per|between Ind AS
as per [ND AS |AS required under IND IRACP norms  |109 provislon
As 109 and 1RACP
Norms
Performing Assels
Stage 1 12,644.85 724.16 11,930.69 . 670,48
Standard Slage 2 559,55 109,38 450,16 3367 108,38
Sublolal 13,204.40 833,55 12,370.85 S3.87 772.88
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Loss Slage 3 1,078.84 910,54 168,30 760.14 122,40
Sub igtal of NPA 1,078.84 910.54 168.20 780.14 122,40
Other ltem such as guarantees, {oan Slage 1 1,5;.-'2.16 §4.65 - - §4.65
commitments, ete, which are in the scope of Ind {Slage 2 - - - - -
A5 102 bul not covered under current tncome: Slage 3 N - - - N
Reacognition, Asscls classification and
provisioning norms, - - - -
Subtetal 1,572.16 84,65 - - 8465
Slage 1 14,2471 508,81 13,408.20 53.67 755.14
Total Slage 2 558.55 109.39 450,18 - 108.29
Stage 3 1,078.84 910.54 168.30 TEB.14 122.40
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52 -The disclosures as required under RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Syslemically Important Hon- Deposit taking Ccmpany and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Dlrechons 2016

Addmonal d|sc1osure

1 Capita!
Partlculars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
CRAR (%) 17.86% 19.61%
CHRAR - Tier i Capilal (%) . . 13.03% 12.80%
CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) ' 4.83% 6.80%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll capilal 500,00 500,00
Amounit ralsed by |ssue of Perpelual Debt Instruments Nil Nif
2 Investments
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1) Value of Investimenls

ijy Gross Value of Investmenls

In India Nil Nil
Oulside India Nil Nif

i} Provislons for Depreciation

In India Ni Nil
CQulslde India Nit Nij
Hily Met Yalue of investments | i B .

In India Nii Nil
Outslde India Nif il

2) Movement of provisions held lowards depreciation on Invesimenis

Opening balanca Nil Nil

Add : Provisions made during lhe year Nil Nil

Less ; While-off | write-back of excess provisions during the year Hil : Mil
Closing balance . il Nt

3 Derivatives
There is no darivatives transaction during he year.
Currensy options { currency future : Not applicable
Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap 1~ Not Applicable
Exchange Traded Inlerest Rate {IR) Derivatives:- Not Applicable
Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Dervatives:- Not Applicable

4 Disclosures relating to Securilisalion- No such transaction during the year.
Details of Financial Asscts sold to Securitisallon 7 Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction:- Not Applicabie
Details of Assignmenl lransactions underlaken by appficable NBFGs:- Not Applicable

5 Details of non-pedforming financial assets purchased / sold: No such transaction during 1he year.

& Asset Liability Management -

Maturity pattern of cerain items of Assels and Liabilities as at 31sl March 2022

upto 30731 | Over 1 month { Over 2 month mc?ﬁ?up moor:l:lrli 1 QOver 1 year Yg:f{()as Over s Total
days up to 2 Month Jup to 3 Month® 1o & month™ year to 3years™ years years
Borrowing from banks 190,01 - 2,500,00 2,500.00] 4,100.80 760,04 - - 10,050.05
Market borowlngs 495,82 499.20 995,02
Recelvables# 7,109.87 2MT7S 951,98 993,32 540,00 273.23| 16835 12,454.50
Investments -

 “redit Receivables ars based on average collecllons in{ast 6 months,
# Receivables include Long term & shert lerm Ioans and advances related lo Credil card & EMI to customer, {net of NPA )

Maturity pattem of ceraln items of Assels and Liabilities as at 313t March 2024

up to 30/31 | Over 1 monih | Over 2 month m;?_:::r&aup mg{lﬁr‘ﬁ 1 Cver 1 year yS:ftroas Gver 5 Total
I . .“
days up lo 2 Monlth jup lo 3 Month 06 month™ | years to dysars years years
Borrowing from banks 780.6% 400.00 = - 600.00 722.76 - - 2,503.45
Warkel borrowings - 1242.65 1238.58 1063.95 - - -] 499,10 4,064.28
Receivablesi# 4,225,36 1,490.85 553,95 583.46 332.02 204.55 - - 7,430.30
inveslmenis - - - - - - - - -

* Reeeivables in period 2-3 manths also includes receivables for period 0-30 days & 1-2 monlhs which are being collecled as such, however the same
will become dug after 2 monlhs as we have given moratorium o our customer as per recent guidelines issued by RBI. )

» Credil Roceivables are based on average collections in last 6 menths.
¥ Receivables include Long lerm & sharl term loans and advances related to Gredit card, personal loan & EMI 1o eustomer, (net of NPA and advance

received from credit card holder} o L
e
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
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{) Exposures To Real Estate Sectar

Direcl EXposure

March 21, 2022

Residential Mortgages - March 31, 2021
Lending fully secured by martgages on residential property {hat [s or will be occupled by the borrower or Nil il
Commercial Real Estates -

Lending secured by mortgage on commercial real estates{ofiice bulldings, retail space, multipurpose Nit il
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MB8S) and olher secured exposures -

a, Residential Nil Nil

b, Commerclal Real Estates Nit Wil
Indirect exposure

Fund based and non — fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (MHB) and housing bank Nil NIt

Gompanies {HFCs}

li} Exposure to Capltat Market
e — e A e

March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2022
direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, canvertible debentures and units of equity- Nil il
advances against shares / bonds / debeniures or other securlties or on clean basis lo individuals far Nil Nil
advances far any other purposes where shares or canvertible bonds or converiibie debentures or units Wil Nil
advances far any other purposes to the extent securad by Lha cellaleral security of shares ar convertible INil Hil
secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behall of stockbrokers and il Hil
loans sanctioned to corparates agalnsl the securily of shares / bonds / debenlures ar olher secunties or Nil il
bridge loans 1o companies agalnst expected equity flows / issues; Mt HNil
all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both regisiered and unregistered) Julll Nit
Total Expasure lo Caplial Market Wik Nil
Details of linancing of parent company products
The company has nol financed any of the product of ils parent company during the financial year 2021-22,
Delails of Single Borrower Limit {SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC
The company has nat exceeded the prudential exposure limils during the financial year 2021-22,
Company has not sanclloned any loan against lhe intangible security during the financlal year 2021-22,
fiyThe company has obtained registration from following regulatar apart from RBI

Particulars Registration number,
Certificate of incorporation under Companies Act 1955, UG5990MH1994GOI0R 1618
NBEC registration 13.01305

{ii) During the financial year 2021-22, BFSL have pald Rs.2000/- as penally to RBI & Rs.1000f- penalty to SEBI,

{iil) Related Party Transaction-
Eor relaled party transaction pleass refer note no. 37

(iv) Remuneration lo Direclors
For remuneratian to Directors please refer note no, 37,

{ v) Net profit or loss for the periad, prior peried ilems and changes in accounting policies.
Please refer note no 39.

{vi} The short term debt rating of the company is A1+ by CRISIL and india Rating & Research Pyl Ltd. The long lem debt rating is AdAfstable by India

Rating & Research Put, Lid and [CRA. There is na change in the rating during FY 2021-22.

{vii} Revenue Recagnilion:-
For Revenue Recognition please refer note no. 3(1).

i) Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of Provisions March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provisions for depraciation on Investrment Wil il

Provislon towards stage 3 L 210,54 653,53
Pravislon for slage 1 and stage 2 assats 518.20 £81.02
Pravigion made towards lncome tax §79.82 £57.57
Other Provision and Contingencies {with details) - -
Provision for reward points 145,04 81,33
Provision for Gratuity - -
Provision for freud : - 4.36 5.15
Proyision for Leave encashment 7.48 17 .67
Provision for Staff Incentive 24.75 0.44
Provision for Expenses 485.861 336.82
Provision for CSR Expenses - 1.91

Male: No pravision has been made for contingencies. Refer note no 38.

i} There is no draw down from lhe reserve during the financial year 2021-22.
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t Mar 2022
(Figure In Rupess in millions, unless otherwise stated)

1li} a) Concentration of Advances

March 31, 2022

Particulars March 31, 2021
Total advance of largest twenty borrowers” . 227 - 28.63
percentage of Advance io largest twenty bomrowers to total advances of 0.23% 0.34%
*The Advances dengles the culstanding balances of standard twenty borrower.

iii) b¥Concentration of Exposure

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total Expasure to largest twenty borrowers * 77.80 102.55
percentags of exposure to twenty jargest bormowers to total advances of 0.54% 1.17%
*The exposures denotes the total credit card limit against the top twenty borrower,

1il} c)Concentration of NPAs

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tokal Exposure ke top four NPA accounts® 7.32 5.490

* The exposure 1o NPA is only principal outstanding. The income is fully de-recegnised and limil is already blocked from lhese custarner,

lil} d) Sector-wise NPAs

Particulars % of NPAS to Total March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Agriculiure & allied activities Nil Nl Wil
MSME Nil Nil Nil
Corporate bomowers credit cards Nil NIl il
Sepvices : Nil Nil il
Unsecured persenal loans Niil Nil il
Aulo loans Nil Nil Nil

Other persanal loans credit cards

7.55%

1,076.84

£53.53

iv] Movernent of NPAs

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i} Mel MPAs to Net Advances (%} Nil Nil

il Movement of NPAs (Gross)

Opening balance 653.53 284 .49
Add:- Additlons durlng the year 1,587.91 588,06
Less:-Wrilten of as Bad Debts 531.00 174 86
Less;- Reductions during the year 641.60 44,16
Closing balance 1,078.84 653.53
i} Movernent of Net NPAs

Opening balance 290.71 Nil
Add- Additions during 1he year il Nil|
Less-Reductions during the year il Nﬂl
Closing balance 290.71 Nil
iv) Movement of provisions for MPAs {excluding provisions on standard

assels)

Opening balance 653,53 284,49
Add:-Provisions made during the year 1,307.20 5848.06
Less:-Writlen off as Bad Debls 530.99 174.86
Less;-write-back of excess provisions 641.60 44,16
Closing balance 788.14 653,53
The company does nol have any joint venture or overseas subsidianes,

Of-palance Sheet 8PVs sponsored:-

There is no ofi-balance sheel 3FYs sponsored by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2021,

Disclosure of customer Complaints

Particutars March 31, 2022 March 21, 2021

No, of complainis pending at the beginning of the year 2484 2,076
No. of comptaints received during the year 1.05,748 61,459
No. of complaints redressed during the year 1,05,263 63,241
Mo, of complainls pending al the end of the year Efi 294

©® :

60/6]
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BoB Financial Sofution Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
{Figure in Rupees in millians, unless otherwise stated)

Public disclosure on liquidity risk as at 31st March 2022

i} funding Concentration based on significant munterparly {Both Deposits and Borrowings)

Name of significant counterparty Amount % of Tatzl Deposit: % of Total Liabiiity
5 {five) refer point 3 below for name of the counlerparty. 10,695.65 |N.AL | B86.42%
Mote: Total liability does not include equity share caplial and olhef equity.
i) Top 20 targe deposits :- Not Applicable
iy Ton 10 borrowings
Name of the hank Amount % to total horrowing
HOFC Bank 4,000,00 36,22%
Bank of Baroda 3,450,056 31.24%
Hongkong & shanghai Banking Corporation 2,600,00 23.54%
Mirae Asset Mutual Fund 495,80 4.45%
Banig Of Baroda Provident Fund Trusl 149,80 1.36%
WE State Electricity Transmission Co Limited Employees' Pension Fund 99.80 0.90%
HvPHL Employees Pension Fund Trust 89,90 0.81%
Bank Of Barada (Employees} Pension Fund 49.90 0.45%
Board Of Trustees For Bokaro Steel Employeges Provident Fund 45.90 0.45%
Lupin Ltd Employees Provident Fund Trust 20.00 0.18%
Total 11,005.15 99.64%
iv) funding Concentration based on significant counterparty
Name of Instrument / product Amount % of Total Liability
Banik lines 10,050,05 81.21%
Commercial paper 495.82 4.01%
NCD 499.11 4.03%
(v} Stock Ratios.
8r, no Name of the instrumenit / % of total % of total % of total
preduct public fund Assets Liabilities
1 Commercial paper N.A, 3.27% 4.01%
2 Hon- Converlible Debentures  |NA, M.A. MN.A.
foriginal maturity <1 years)
3 Dther Shorl temm liabilities NLA, 86,18% £81.21%

Note: Tolal liability does net include equity share capltal and other squity.

{vi) Institutional set-up for liguidity risk management:- Liquidity represent the ability of the company o generate sufiiclent cash flow lo meet financial
aobligatlon, both under normal and stressed condilions, without liquidating assets or raising funds at unfavourable terms, the operations of the company

give rise to Assets Liability mismalches and liquidity risks.

In order to manage lhese risks the Company has a Board approved Assets Liability Management policy in place preparsd on {he basis of RBI guidelines
and Intemal factors specific to our business, The policy is reviewed on annual basis.

As par our report of even date
For ASL & Ca,

Chartered Accountants

[prm Reglstration No. L01921W]

shfha Jain

Partner
{Membership No, 136484}

s¥hjiv Cha
Chalrman

{DIN: 08368443)

Place: Mumbal Pomiﬁ:w

Date: 04th May 2022.

Chief Finan IaI Qfficer

(PAN: AHEP 7049P)

Place: Mumbal
Cate: 04th May 2022,

5h

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
BOB Financlal 50Iutlons Limited

— ,_,--*-é

allendra Singh

Managing Director & CEQ
(DIN: 08623335)

e
rrielius

CompSiy Secretary
(PAN:BVLPS3134E)
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ASL & C(Co.

Chartered Accountants

CORRIGENDUM

This corrigendum is in respect of our Independent Audit Report of BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the
financial year 2021-2022 signed by us on 04™ May, 2022 whetrein few typing errors were noticed : -

1 . Page 4 - Clausc 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of independent audit report . It
should be read as under : -

“As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a
statement on the matters specificd in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. “

2 . Annexure “A” para 1 . It should be read as under: -

“On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and in terms of the information and explanations given to
us, we state as under. Matters specified in clauses (i)(c) (e),(iii){a)(e),(v),(viil), (ix) (&) (f),(xi} (b) (c),(xiD), (xV),
(xvi)(b) (c) (d), (xvil), {xviii), (xx) & (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 do not
apply to the Company, Accordingly no comments have been made on the matters not applicable to the company™

3 . Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report Serial No. 1. It should be read as under: -

process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing
of uccounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

S. ' Directions Reply
No.
1. Whether the company has system in place to | As pet the information and explanation given to

us and based on the examination of records on
the test check basis , the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting transaction
through IT system.

Al} other information in our Independent Auditor report remains unchanged. Kindly find herewith the rectified

pages of our report duly certified by us.

For ASL & Co.
Charlered Accountants
[Regn No. 101921W]

(Sh

Partner

Place ;: Mumbai
Date July 20, 2022
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-1 q -

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specificd in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issucd directions indicating the areas to
be examined in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Act, the compliances of
which is set out in the Annexure “I3”,

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a). We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposcs of our audit.

(b). In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of thosc books.

(c). The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d). In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(). On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2}) of the Act.

(). With respect to the adequacy of the internal [inancial controls with reference to financial
statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure “C”.

(). With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the financial statements;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeablc losses.
iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.




Continuation Sheet a8t & (Co.

Chartered Accountants

BB Financial Solutions Limited — Audit Report 2021-22

Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the
Financial Statements of BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the Year Ended 31 March
2022,

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriatc and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state as under. Matters specified in clauses (i)(c)
(e),(iii)(a)(e),(vi),(viid), (ix) (&) (B),(xi) (b) (e).(xib), (xv), (xvi)(b) (c) (d), (xvii), (xviil), (xx) &
(xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Companics (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 do not apply to the
Company. Accordingly no comments have been made on the matters not applicable to the
company.

(i)
(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(¢) As per the information and explanations given to us, fixed assets have been physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancics were noticed on such verification
and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(il )

(a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the inventory has been physically
verified by the management during the year at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more n
the aggregate for each class of Inventory were noticed on verification between the
physical stock and the book records.

(b) As per information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, during the year under review, the company has been sanctioned working capital
limit in excess of T 50 million from bank on the basis of security of the current assets.
As informed to us , the same was disbursed on the last day of the year under review
and the filing of the quarterly statements and returns , of the currents assets secured,
was not due till the year end.

(iii ) According to information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, and based on examination of the books and records, during the
year under review the Company has not provided any guarantee and security to any
parties; but the company has made investments and granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans, secured and unsecured during it normal course of business.
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the Financial Statements

of BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the Year Ended 31° March 2022.

Directions under section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013

We have examined the books of accounts of the BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2022 and we are submitting our comments and answers to the questions asked in
the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, according to the best of our
information and explanations given to us by the management and as appears from the examination
of the books of accounts and records produced before us by the Company, which are as under.

S. Directions

Reply

1. | Whether the company has system in placc
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT If yes, the
implications of processing of accounting

system?

transactions oufside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may bc
stated.

As per the information and explanation given to
us and based on the examination of records on
the test check basis , the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting transaction
through IT system.

2 . | Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
of debts /loans/interest etc., made hy a
lender to the company due to the
company’s inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Whether  such properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is
Government company, then its direction
is also applicable for statutory auditor of

cases are

lender company).

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis
of information and explanations given to us, no
restructuring of any existing loan facility and no
case waiver/write off from the Company’s lender
in respect of loan facility during the year under
review reported.

3. | Whether funds (grant/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/ State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation.

As per information & explanation given to us and
the records produced before us, no funds
(grant/subsidy etc.) received/ rcceivable for
specific  schemes Central/  State
Government or its agencies during the year under
review, Reimbursement receivable under the

from

v




